In 2005, Beasley Broadcast Group realized the benefits of programming and
management changes in Philadelphia, recordeﬁ significant growth from our Ft.
Myers - Naples cluster, and took measures intended to generate future gains in
other important markets including Miami and %as Vegas. Reflecting a focus on
realizing value from our statjon clusters, Beasley Broadcast Group reported a
17% gain in 2005 net revenue compared to 2004, and achieved this in an
environment where revenue in our markets (bgsed on Miller, Kaplan reports)
declined 1.1%. ““
To derive returns from our radio station assets that exceed market growth, we
review and evaluate station ratings, formats, revenue and management to
identify areas for improvements. This active approach to management has
served the company well, and is the primary baShS of our operating strategy. In
2005, we also continued to invest in HD Radio conversions, as we believe it
represents radio’s most important technological jinnovation in many years and
a catalyst for future growth. J\
Finally, highlighting our belief in the Company"‘,s long-term prospects, in 2005
we both repurchased shares and initiated a divid%nd.

i
2005 Financial Results ‘
Consolidated net revenue in 2005 rose 1.7% to $124 3 million from $122.2 million
in 2004. In addition to the specific market factprs noted below, in 2004 the
Company recorded $15 million in revenue rel\ated to political advertising,
which did not recur in 2005. Operating income ftom continuing operations in
2005 decreased 16% to $25.1 million. Net income|in 2005 was $10.7 million, or
$0.44 per diluted share, compared to net income of $12.0 million, or $0.49 per
diluted share, in 2004. Net income for 2005 reﬂects a $2.0 million impairment
charge and $1.1 million stock-based compensation|expense while 2004 reflected
a $2.4 million loss on extinguishment of Iong—terrﬁ debt.

Market Highlights and Expectations ]
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Founded in 1961, Beasley

Broadcast Group owns and
operates 41 radio stations,

26 FM and 15 AM, located in

ten large- and mid-sized markets.
Sixteen of these stations are
located in six of the nation’s

top fifty radio markets: Boston,
Atlanta, Philadelphia, Miami-
Ft. Laudevdale, Las Vegas and

West Paim Beach-Boca Raton.

Collectively, Beasley Broadcast
Group radio stations reach
3.6 million people on a weekly

basis according to Fall 2005
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Revenue growth in 2005 was driven by the succe\ES in our Philadel PROCESSED Ve D2GiE

station cluster where spot advertising revenue rosé 28.4% over 2004 le

is a direct result of investments over the past several years that }
Beasley's Philadelphia cluster to thrive in a market where revenue dec
from 2004 to 2005. ’

]
Similarly, the Ft. Myers - Naples cluster outpaced the market as spot revenue
grew 12.6% over 2004, while the market as a whole was up 5.6% for the year.
This marks the third censecutive year of revenue igains from this five-station
cluster. \‘
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Spot ad revenue for our Miami station cluster declined 3.3%,
largely attributable to the expiration of the Miami Dolphins
broadcast rights. Despite this decline, we believe our Miami
cluster holds tremendous potential with our rhythmic
contemporary hit radio and country stations, and expected
better returns from our AM sports talk station. Improved
contributions from Miami are a company priority and we
recently named several proven Miami market broadcast
veterans to key management positions to support our goals
for growth.

Las Vegas is an important, fast-growing market that presents
opportunities for Beasley Broadcast Group. In a year where
radio advertising was generally challenged, radio revenue in
the Las Vegas market grew almost 3% over 2004 levels. In 2005
our Las Vegas cluster recorded a 5.6% spot revenue decline that
we believe was largely attributable to a county music format
change that targets a significantly larger audience than the
previous format. Rating trends to date have been positive and
we are optimistic that we will improve on the performance of
the former format. Elsewhere in Las Vegas, our classic rock
station outperformed the market, though this was partially
offset by a decline in revenue at our 8os station. Las Vegasis a
terrific market and to drive our success there we recently
named an 18-year Las Vegas broadcasting veteran and
announced plans to acquire our first AM station in the market.

Dividend Initiation and Share Repurchases

In December, the Board of Directors authorized the initiation
of a quarterly cash divided of $0.0625 per share for the
Company's Class A and Class B common stock. In addition,
during 2005, we repurchased 131,911 shares in open market
transactions and we have approximately $225 million
remaining under the present repurchase authorization.

The quarterly dividend and the ongoing share repurchases
reflect the free cash flow generated by our radjo station assets.
These initiatives, when combined with our operating strategies
and focus on balance sheet management, collectively support
our goal of increasing stockholder value.

HD Radio Gaining Momentum

We remain committed to staying on the forefront of the
evolving broadcasting environment and employing
technologies that enhance the listening experience and create
a more powerful medium for our advertising clients.
Reflecting that commitment, Beasley was an early investor in
and adopter of HD Radio™ technology, which expands music
choices for listeners, provides digital sound quality and should
heighten radio’s appeal to advertisers.

Beasley was the first in the industry to broadcast a public HD
Radio multicast demonstration on a commercial FM station

and was first to broadcast an HD Radio signal and introduce
multicast channels in Miami and Philadelphia. We ended 2005
with approximately 40% of our stations converted to this
exciting new technology and plan to have over go% of our
stations broadcasting in HD by year-end 2007.

Looking Ahead

Throughout 2005 and into 2006, we've made changes that can
drive long-term growth. In addition to format changes, we
made several market-level management changes as we believe
local management has the best ability to drive sales and
ratings improvements given their in-depth knowledge of their
specific market. I am proud that we were able to call on our
own talent pool to steer some of our most important markets.

As always, we continue to invest in station programming,
personnel and promotions to expand our competitive edge,
serve advertisers' changing needs, and create value for our
stockholders. We expect that our ongoing approach to actively
managing our station portfolio, appointing leading local
management, investing in HD Radio, focusing on our balance
sheet and capital structure and paying dividends will serve our
stackholders well in the coming periods. I thank you for your
continued interest in the Company and look forward to
reporting back to you next year.

Sincerely yours,

&%@ﬁ&«%p

George G. Beasley
Founder, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
April 21, 2006

Forward-Looking Statements - This letter to stockholders includes forward-
looking statements within the meaning of federal securities regulations. These
forward-looking statements are identified by their use of terms and phrases such
as “anticipate,” “believe,” “could,” “estirnate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,”
“predict,” “project,” will,” “continue” and other similar terms and phrases,
including references to assumptions and forecasts of future results, Forward-
looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual
results to differ materially from those anticipated at the time the forward-looking
statements are made, These risks include, but are not limited to the risks and
uncertainties assoctated with the Beasley Broadcast Group's business described in
its filings with the SEC. Although the Beasley Broadcast Group believes that the
expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are based upon
reasonable assumptions, it can give no assurance that the expectations will be
attained or that any deviation will not be material. All information is as of the
date of this letter to stockholders and the Company undertakes no obligation to
update any forward-looking statement to conform the statement to actual results

or changes in expectations.
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Unless the context requires otherwise, all references in this report to *“we,” “us,” “our,” and similar terms
refer to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

We were founded in 1961 and are 1e

We own and operate 41 radio stations in

PARTI

d by our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, George G. Beasley.
the following ten markets: Atlanta, GA, Boston, MA, Philadelphia, PA,

Miami-Ft. Lauderdale, FL, Las Vegas, NV West Palm Beach-Boca Raton, FL, Ft. Myers-Naples, FL,

Greenville-New Bern-Jacksonville, NC,

Recent Developments

On January 30, 2006, our credit agr

Fayetteville, NC, and Augusta, GA.

ement was amended to, among other things, increase the maximum

commitment under the revolving credit loan, reduce the amount of the term loan, extend the maturity date of the

credit facility, increase the amount of div
financial covenants. In connection with t
extinguishment of long-term debt during

idends we are able to pay on our common stock, and revise certain
he amended credit agreement, we recorded a $0.7 million loss on
the first quarter of 2006.

(

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopﬁ

ed Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) 123(R),

Share-Based Payment. SFAS 123(R) requlres entities to recognize the cost of employee services received in
exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of those awards. As a result of the
adoption of SFAS 123 (R), we expect to \lrecord an additional $0.3 million of stock-based compensation expense

during 2006 related to previous grants of
section in Item 7 of this report. ‘

stock options. For further discussion, see the Recent Pronouncements

We tested our FCC broadcasting licuenses for impairment as of December 31, 2005 in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. To assist in determining the fair value of our

FCC broadcasting licenses as of Decembﬂ

er 31, 2005, we obtained appraisals from an independent appraisal

company. As a result of the testing, we rf:corded an impairment loss of $2.0 million related to the FCC
broadcasting licenses in our Augusta, GA market cluster. For further discussion, see the Critical Accounting

Policies section in Item 7 of this report.

Radio Station Portfolio j

|

The following table sets forth selec
\

Market/Radio Station

WRCA-AM ...................]
WRDW-FM

WWDB-AM
WXTU-FM

ed information about our portfolio of radio stations.

2005 2005 Beasley2 ggf)adcast
Radio Market Market Group, Inc.’s
Revenue Year Revenue  Market Revenue
Rank Acquired Format Growth Rank
6 N/A N/A
2000 Religious
2000  Hispanic
8 N/A N/A
2000  Foreign Language
10 (1.9% 5
1997  Rhythmic CHR
1998  Religious
1986  Financial
1983  Country




2005

2005 2005 Beasley Broadcast
Radio Market Market Group, Inc.’s
Revenue Year Revenue  Market Revenue
Market/Radio Station Rank Acquired Format Growth Rank
Miami-Ft. Lauderdale, FL ........... 11 2.3)% 4
WHSR-AM ...... .. .ol 2000  Foreign Language
WKIS-FM ...l 1996  Country
WPOW-FM .................... 1986  Rhythmic CHR
WQAM-AM ................ ... 1996  Sports/Talk
WWNN-AM . ... 2000  Health
Las Vegas, NV ... .. ... ... ... ... 34 3.3% 4
KCYE-FM ....... ... ... et 2001  Country
KKLZ-FM ..................... 2001  Classic Rock
KSTI-FM .......... ... ... .. .... 2001 80’s
West Palm Beach-Boca Raton, FL . . . .. 44 N/A N/A
WSBR-AM ..................... 2000  Financial
Ft. Myers-Naples, FL ............... 64 7.6% 1
WIBX-FM ......... ..ot 1998  Alternative Rock
WIPT-FM . ......... .. 1998  Adult Standards
WRXK-FM ..................... 1986  Classic Rock
WWCN-AM ...t 1987  Sports/Talk
WXKB-FM ..................... 1995  Adult CHR
Greenville-New Bern-
Jacksonville, NC .. ............... 89 (6.0)% 1
WIKS-FM ........... ... ... 1996  Urban AC
WMGV-FM .................... 1996 AC
WNCT-AM ... 1996  Hispanic
WNCT-FM .............coovn.. 1996  Oldies
WSFL-FM ..................... 1991  Classic Rock
WXNR-FM . ........... ... 0 1996  Alternative Rock
Fayettevile, NC ................... 102 Q.0)% 1
WAZZ-AM . .................... 1997  Adult Standards
WFLB-FM ..................... 1996  Classic Hits
WKML-FM .................... 1983  Country
WTEL-AM ..................... 1997  Religious
WUKS-FM ..................... 1997  Urban AC
WZFX-FM . ... ... .. .o, 1997  Urban
Augusta, GA ... .. .. . oo 125 (8.6)% 1
WCHZ-FM ..................... 1997  Active Rock
WDRR-FM .................. ... 1992  Classic Hits
WGAC-AM .............c.ov... 1993  News/Talk
WGAC-FM .......... ... ... ..., 2000 News/Talk
WGOR-FM ..................... 1994  Oldies
WGUS-AM ............ oot 2003  Southern Gospel
WKXC-FM..................... 2001  Country
WRDW-AM .................... 2000  News/Sports/Talk
WSLT-FM ..................... 2001 AC




J

For our radio station portfolio, we dérived'

» the 2005 radio market revenue rank from BIA Financial Network, Inc. The radio market revenue rank
reflects the size of the radio marll<et compared to other radio markets in the United States when
measured by the amount of revenue derived by all of the radio stations in each market.

» the 2005 market revenue growth/ from Miller, Kaplan, Arase & Co. (December 2005 ed.). The market
revenue growth reflects the change in the size of the radio market from 2004 to 2005 when measured by
the amount of revenue derived by all of the radio stations in that market. We do not subscribe to Miller,
Kaplan, Arase & Co. for AtlantaH Boston and West Palm Beach-Boca Raton therefore the reports
containing this information for these markets were not available to us.

¢ our 2005 market revenue rank fr’om Miller, Kaplan, Arase & Co. (December 2005 ed.). Qur market
revenue rank reflects the size of our share of the radio market compared to other owners in the radio
market when measured by the arhount of revenue derived by all of the radio stations in that market. We
do not subscribe to Miller, Kaplan Arase & Co. for Atlanta, Boston and West Palm Beach-Boca Raton

therefore the reports containing thlS information for these markets were not available to us.

|\

Operating Strategy J
|

We seek to secure and maintain a leadership position in the markets we serve by developing market-leading
clusters of radio stations in each of our markets. We operate our radio stations in clusters to capture a variety of
demographic listener groups, which we b}:eheve enhances our radio stations’ appeal to a wide range of advertisers.
In addition, we have been able to achieve operating efficiencies by consolidating office and studio space where
possible to minimize duplicative management positions and reduce overhead expenses. Finally, we believe that
strategic acquisitions of additional radio - ”stanons in existing clusters position us to capitalize on our market
expertise and existing relationships with local advertisers to increase revenues of the acquired radio stations.

|
We conduct extensive market reseafch in an effort to enhance our ratings and in certain circumstances to
identify opportunities to reformat radio stations to reach underserved demographic groups and increase
advertising revenue. Our research, progrgmmmg and promotions strategy combines thorough research with an
assessment of our competitors’ vulnerabﬁhtles and overall market dynamics in order to identify specific audience
and formatting opportunities within each market. Using this research, we tailor our programming and promotions
on each radio station to maximize its ap[‘)eal to its target audience and to respond to the changing preferences of

our listeners. '

Our radio stations pursue a variety of programming and promotional initiatives designed to develop a
distinctive identity and to strengthen thelradio stations’ local brand or franchise. In addition, through our
research, programming and promotional/initiatives, we create a marketable identity for our radio stations to

. . |
enhance audience share and listener loyalty.

Acquisition Strategy

Our acquisition strategy is to (1) acqu1re additional radio stations in our current markets to further enhance
our market position (2) acquire existing ‘clusters in new markets or establish a presence in new markets where we
believe we can build successful clusters|over time and (3) pursue swap opportunities with other radio station

owners to build or enhance our market.

Our ability to execute our acquisiti{on strategy, is subject to our ability to identify acquisition targets that
both satisty our acquisition criteria and that are available on terms that are economically and commercially

acceptable to us. During the past three ﬁisoal years, we have remained selective in our approach to acquisitions
and did not identify any material radio stations acquisitions that both fit our criteria and that were available on

| . . . . .
terms that were acceptable to us. As a result, we did not acquire any radio stations during the past three fiscal

5




years. While we cannot be certain that conditions will change and that acceptable acquisition opportunities will
arise in the future, we intend to continue to pursue our acquisition strategy. We believe that many of our
competitors have had a similar experience in this regard during the past several years and that they may be eager
to take advantage of any improvement in the market for radio stations. Many of these competitors have greater
financial resources than we do and may be able to outbid us for attractive acquisition targets. Additionally, even
if we are able to identify acceptable acquisition opportunities, our ability to complete such acquisitions will also
remain subject to, among other factors, FCC approval and the availability of additional borrowings under our
credit facility, or other permitted financings including additional equity offerings, which may not be available to
us when needed or on acceptable terms.

Competition; Changes in Broadcasting Industry

The radio broadcasting industry is highly competitive. The success of each of our radio stations depends
largely upon its audience ratings and its share of the overall advertising revenue within its market. Our radio
stations compete for listeners and advertising revenue directly with other radio stations and other media outlets
within their respective markets. Radio stations compete for listeners primarily on the basis of program content
that appeals to a particular demographic group. By building a strong listener base consisting of a specific
demographic group in each of our markets, we are able to attract advertisers seeking to reach those listeners.

The following are some of the factors that we believe are important to a radio station’s competitive position:
e transmitter power;

¢ management experience;

¢ assigned frequency;

* audience characteristics;

* local program acceptance; and

* the number and characteristics of other radio stations and other advertising media in the market area.

We attempt to improve our competitive position with promotional campaigns aimed at the demographic
groups targeted by our radio stations and by sales efforts designed to attract advertisers.

The operation of a radio station requires a license from the FCC. The number of radio stations that can
operate in a given market is limited by strict AM interference criteria and availability of FM radio frequencies
allotted by the FCC to communities in that market. The FCC’s multiple ownership rules that regulate the number
of radio stations serving the same area that may be owned or controlled by a single entity further limits the
number of radio stations that a single entity may operate in a market.

Our radio stations compete for audiences and advertising revenues within their respective markets directly
with other radio stations, as well as with other media such as newspapers, magazines, over-the-air and cable
television, outdoor advertising and direct mail. The radio broadcasting industry also competes with other media
technologies such as satellite-delivered digital audio radio services, audio programming offered by cable
systems, direct broadcast satellite systems, internet content providers, personal communications services and
other wireless digital audio delivery services as well as low-power FM radio, which has resulted in new
noncommercial FM stations serving small, localized areas. Historically, the radio broadcasting industry
historically has grown despite the introduction of competing technologies for the delivery of entertainment and
information, such as television broadcasting, cable television, audiotapes, personal digital audio devices and
compact discs. There can be no assurances, however, that this historical growth will continue or that the
development or introduction in the future of any existing or new media technology will not have an adverse
effect on the radio broadcasting industry.




The FCC has selected the In-Band Ox
digital operations by AM and FM radio stz
authorized the commencement of “hybrid’

-Channel™ as the exclusive technology for introduction of terrestrial
tions. The technology is also known as “HD Radio™ .” The FCC has
HD Radio™ transmissions, that is, simultaneous broadcast in both

digital and analog format, pending the adoption of formal licensing and service rules. Nighttime operations by

digital AM radio stations have not yet bee
digital audio broadcasting over traditional
the ability to offer a greater variety of auxi

h authorized and remain subject to further review. The advantages of

analog broadcasting technology include improved sound quality and
liary services. HD Radio™ technology would permit a radio station to

transmit radio programming in both analo)‘é and digital formats, and eventually in digital only formats, using the

bandwidth that the radio station is currentl
the FCC will adopt regarding HD Radio™

y licensed to use. It is unclear what formal licensing and service rules

technology and what effect such regulations would have on our

business or the operations of our radio stations. It is also unclear what impact the introduction of digital

J

broadcasting will have on the radio markets in which we compete.
|

|
We currently utilize HD Radio™ digital technology on a number of our stations and plan to install this
technology on most of our other stations over the next few years. In addition to committing to the use of this
technology, we hold an equity interest in iBiquity. We are also a member of the HD Digital Radio Alliance

|

Association, which has been formed to promo

|

te and develop HD Radio™ and its digital multicast operations.

We cannot predict what other new competitive services or other regulatory matters might be considered in

|

the future by the FCC, nor can we assess in advance what impact, if any, the implementation of any of these

services, proposals or changes might havev

Seasonality

Seasonal revenue fluctuations are co
fluctuations in advertising expenditures. @
year.

i
i

Employees

As of February 28, 2006, we had a s

. . |
party to a collective bargaining agreemen”t

on our business.

mmon in the radio broadcasting industry and are due primarily to

ur revenues are typically lowest in the first calendar quarter of the

aff of 489 full-time employees and 173 part-time employees. We are a

with the American Federation of Television and Radio Artists. This

agreement applies only to certain of our employees at WXTU-FM in Philadelphia. The collective bargaining

|

agreement automatically renews for successive one-year periods unless either party gives a notice of proposed
termination at least 60 days before the termination date. We believe that our relations with our employees are

good.

Environmental

H

As the owner, lessee or operator of various real properties and facilities, we are subject to federal, state and
local environmental laws and regulationsﬁ| Historically, compliance with these laws and regulations has not had a
material adverse effect on our business. There can be no assurance, however, that compliance with existing or
new environmental laws and regulationg will not require us to make significant expenditures of funds.

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.bbgi.com. You may obtain through our internet website, free of charge, copies

of our annual reports on Form 10-K, quaJ"t

amendments to those reports filed or furni
reports will be available as soon as reaso

nal

erly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and any
shed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. These
bly practicable after we electronically file such material with, or

furnish such material to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Federal Regulation of Radio Broadcasting

The radio broadcasting industry is subject to extensive and changing federal regulation of, among other
things, program and advertising content including determination of decency standards, technical operations and
business and employment practices. This regulatory regime is administered by the Federal Communications
Commission, or FCC, which regulates radio station ownership, operation and transfer. Among other things, the
FCC:

»  assigns frequency bands for broadcasting;

* determines the particular frequencies, locations, operating powers and other technical parameters of
radio stations;

* issues, renews, revokes, conditions and modifies radio station licenses;
* determines whether to approve changes in ownership or control of radio station licenses;
* regulates equipment used by radio stations; and

» adopts and implements regulations and policies that directly affect the ownership, operation and
employment practices of radio stations.

The FCC has the power to impose penalties for violations of its rules or the Communications Act, including
the imposition of monetary forfeitures, the issuance of short-term licenses, the imposition of a condition on the
renewal of a license, and, in egregious cases, non-renewal of licenses and the revocation of licenses.

The following is a brief summary of some provisions of the Communications Act and of certain specific
FCC rules and policies. The summary is not a comprehensive listing of all of the regulations and policies
affecting radio stations. For further information concerning the nature and extent of federal regulation of radio
stations, you should refer to the Communications Act, FCC rules and FCC public notices and rulings.

FCC Licenses. Radio stations operate pursuant to broadcasting licenses that are ordinarily granted by the
FCC for renewable terms of eight years. A radio station may continue to operate beyond the expiration date of its
license if a timely filed license renewal application is pending. During the periods when renewal applications are
pending, petitions to deny license renewals can be filed by interested parties, including members of the public.
Historically, FCC licenses have generally been renewed. We have no reason to believe that our licenses will not
be renewed, although there can be no assurance to that effect. The non-renewal of one or more of our licenses
could have a material adverse effect on our business.

The FCC classifies each AM and FM radio station. An AM radio station operates on either a clear channel,
regional channel or local channel. A clear channel is one on which AM radio stations are assigned to serve wide
areas. Clear channel AM radio stations are classified as either: Class A radio stations, which operate on an
unlimited time basis and are designated to render primary and secondary service over an extended area; Class B
radio stations, which operate on an unlimited time basis and are designed to render service only over a primary
service area; or Class D AM radio stations, which operate either during daytime hours only, during limited times
only or on an unlimited time basis with low nighttime power. A regional channel is one on which Class B and
Class D AM radio stations may operate and serve primarily a principal center of population and the rural areas
contiguous to it. A local channel is one on which AM radio stations operate on an unlimited time basis and serve
primarily a community and the immediately contiguous suburban and rural areas. Class C AM radio stations
operate on a local channel and are designed to render service only over a primary service area that may be
reduced as a consequence of interference.

The FCC has authorized an additional 100 kHz of bandwidth for the AM band and has allotted frequencies
in this new band to certain existing AM radio station licensees that applied for migration to the expanded AM
band, including one of our radio stations, subject to the requirement that at the end of a transition period, those
licensees return to the FCC the license for one of the AM band radio stations. Upon the completion of the

8




migration process, it is expected that some AM radio stations will have improved coverage because of reduced
interference. We have not completed ourjevaluation of the impact of the migration process on our operations but

do not believe that such impact will be m“a'terial. We currently operate WRDW-AM on 1630 kHz in the expanded
AM band and in November 2006, in accq\rdance with FCC requirements, we will surrender either the expanded
band license for WRDW-AM or the exisl;ing band license for WGUS-AM in Augusta, GA.

The class of an FM radio station det;,rmines its minimum and maximum facilities requirements. FM class
designations depend upon the geographlc zone in which the transmitter of the FM radio station is located. In

general, commercial FM radio stations ar‘F classified as follows, in order of increasing power and antenna height:
Class A, B1,C3,B,C2,C1,C0and C. In H addition, the FCC has adopted a rule that subjects Class C FM radio
stations that do not satisfy a certain antenna height requirement to an involuntary downgrade in class to Class CO

under certain circumstances.

The following table sets forth the market served (the FCC-designated city of license may differ), call letters,
FCC license classification, frequency, po”wer and FCC license expiration date of each of the radio stations that we
own including both the existing band hce‘nse for WGUS-AM and the expanded band license for WRDW-AM in
Augusta, GA. In many cases, our llcense§ are held by wholly-owned indirect subsidiaries. Pursuant to FCC rules
and regulations, many AM radio stations ‘are licensed to operate at a reduced power during the nighttime
broadcasting hours, which can result in rqducmg the radio station’s coverage during the nighttime hours of

operation. Both daytime and nighttime power is shown, where applicable. For FM radio stations, the maximum

effective radiated power in the main lobejis given.
|
‘ Expiration
Date of
; FCC Power in FCC
Market ! Call Letters  Class  Frequency Kilowatts License
Atlanta, GA ......... ... ... .. ..., .... WAEC-AM B 860 kHz 5 day/5Snight 04/01/2012
j WWWE-AM D 1100 kHz 5 04/01/2012
Boston, MA......................l.... WRCA-AM B 1330 kHz 5 04/01/2006
Philadelphia, PA ................... ... WRDW-FM B 96.5MHz 17 08/01/2006
WTMR-AM B 800kHz 5 day/5night 06/01/2006
WWDB-AM D 860 kHz 10 08/01/2006
WXTU-FM B 925MHz 15.5 08/01/2006
Miami-Ft. Lauderdale, FL ........... ... WHSR-AM B 980kHz  5day/l night 02/01/2012
\ WKIS-FM C 99.9MHz 100 02/01/2012
. WPOW-FM  C  96.5MHz 100 02/01/2012
l WQAM-AM B 560kHz  5day/l night  02/01/2004
! WWNN-AM B 1470 kHz 50 day/2.5 night 02/01/2012
Las Vegas, NV . ................... .... KCYE-FM C 104.3 MHz 245 10/01/2005
KKLZ-FM C 963MHz . 100 10/01/2013
KSTI-FM C 102.7 MHz 96 10/01/2013
West Palm Beach-Boca Raton, FL . . . .. .... WSBR-AM B 740 kHz 2.5 day/.94 night 02/01/2012
Ft. Myers-Naples, FL. ............... ... WIBX-FM C2 993 MHz 45 02/01/2012
WIPT-FM C2 106.3 MHz 50 02/01/2012
WRXK-FM C 96.1MHz 100 02/01/2012
WWCN-AM B 770kHz 10 day/1 night 02/01/2012
WXKB-FM C 103.9MHz 100 02/01/2012
Greenville-New Bern-Jacksonville, NC .J.... WIKS-FM Cl 1019 MHz 100 12/01/2011
! WMGV-FM  Cl1 103.3 MHz 100 12/01/2011
| WNCT-AM B 1070 kHz 10 12/01/2011
WNCT-FM C 1079 MHz 100 12/01/2011
WSFL-FM Cl 106.5 MHz 100 12/01/2011
WXNR-FM C2  99.5MHz 16.5 12/01/2011
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Expiration

Date of
FCC Power in FCC

Market Call Letters Class  Frequency Kilowatts License
Fayetteville, NC ......................... WAZZ-AM C 1490 kHz 1 12/01/2011
WFLB-FM C 965MHz 100 12/01/2011
WKML-FM C 957 MHz 100 12/01/2011
WTEL-AM B 1160 kHz 5 day/.25 night 12/01/2011
WUKS-FM C3 107.7 MHz 52 12/01/2011
WZFX-FM C1 99.1 MHz 100 12/01/2011
Augusta, GA ... ... WCHZ-FM C3 95.1 MHz 5.7 04/01/2012
WDRR-FM C3  93.9 MHz 13 04/01/2012
WGAC-AM B 580 kHz 5 day/.84 night 04/01/2012
WGAC-FM A 93.1MHz 4.1 04/01/2012
WGOR-FM A 102.7 MHz 3 12/01/2011
WGUS-AM B 1480 kHz 5 04/01/2012
WKXC-FM (C2 99.5MHz 24 12/01/2011
WRDW-AM B 1630 kHz 10 day/l night 04/01/2012
WSLT-FM C3 98.3MHz 11.5 12/01/2011

WQAM-AM’s license renewal is currently subject to objections and indecency-related proceedings at the
FCC, described below, and that renewal has not yet been granted. We timely-filed a renewal application in
October 2003. Because we filed a timely renewal application, we continue to operate the radio station under this
license in the ordinary course. We do not anticipate non-renewal.

In February 2004, the FCC initiated an enforcement inquiry in response to allegations that WQAM-AM had
broadcast indecent material on one day in September 2003. In November 2004, the FCC issued to us a notice of
apparent liability for a monetary forfeiture of $55,000 for alleged indecency violations relating to broadcasts on
two additional days in September 2003 at WQAM-AM. In December 2004, the FCC initiated an enforcement
inquiry in response to allegations that WQAM-AM had broadcast indecent material on eight different dates in
2004 on the Howard Stern Show; that inquiry also relates to WRXK-FM, which also carried the Howard Stern
Show at that time. In August 2003, the FCC initiated an enforcement inquiry in response to allegations that
WQAM-AM had broadcast indecent material on four different occasions; that inquiry also relates to WRXK.

KCYE-FM'’s license has not yet been renewed. We timely-filed a renewal application in June 2005. Because
we filed a timely renewal application, we continue to operate the radio station under this license in the ordinary
course. We do not anticipate non-renewal.

Indecency Regulation. The FCC’s rules prohibit the broadcast of obscene material at any time and
indecent material between the hours of 6 am and 10 pm. Broadcasters risk violating the prohibition on the
broadcast of indecent material because of the vagueness of the FCC’s definition of indecent material, coupled
with the spontaneity of live programming. The FCC in the last few years has stepped up its enforcement
activities as they apply to indecency, and has threatened to initiate license revocation or license renewal
proceedings against broadcast licensees for a category of undefined “serious” indecency violations. The FCC has
also expanded the breadth of indecency regulation to include material that could be considered “blasphemy”

“personally reviling epithets”, “profanity” and vulgar or coarse words amounting to a nuisance. Legislation has
also been introduced in Congress that would increase the penalties for broadcasting indecent programming, and
depending on the number of violations engaged in, would potentially subject broadcasters to license revocation,
renewal or qualifications proceedings in the event that they broadcast indecent material. One of our radio stations
was issued a notice of apparent liability for a monetary forfeiture for indecency violations, and is currently
subject to an enforcement inquiry with respect to alleged indecency violations, and that radio station as well as
another of our radio stations are currently subject to a separate enforcement inquiry with respect to alleged
indecency violations. See FCC Licenses above.
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Transfers or Assignment of License. The Communications Act prohibits the assignment of broadcast
licenses or the transfer of control of a broadcast licensee without the prior approval of the FCC. In determining
whether to grant such approval, the FCC considers a number of factors pertaining to the licensee and proposed
licensee, including:

* compliance with the various rules limiting common ownership of media properties in a given market;

« the character of the licensee and|those persons holding attributable interests in the licensee; and

¢ compliance with the Communications Act’s limitations on alien ownership as well as compliance with
other FCC regulations and pohc]es.

To obtain FCC consent to assign or transfer control of a broadcast license, appropriate applications must be
filed with the FCC. If the application involves a substantial change in ownership or control, the application must
be placed on public notice for not less tha}n 30 days during which time interested parties, including members of
the public, may file petitions to deny or ocher objections against the application. These types of petitions are filed
from time to time with respect to propose“d acquisitions. Informal objections to assignment and transter of control
applications may be filed at any time up until the FCC acts on the application. If the application does not involve
a substantial change in ownership or control it is a pro forma application. The pro forma application is
nevertheless subject to having informal OF_]ECHOI’IS filed against it. When passing on an assignment or transfer
application, the FCC is prohibited from considering whether the public interest might be served by an assignment
or transfer of the broadcast license to any|party other than the assignee or transferee specified in the application.
If the FCC grants an assignment or transfer application, interested parties have 30 days from public notice of the
grant to seek reconsideration of that grant. The FCC usually has an additional ten days to set aside the grant on its

own motion. The Communications Act permits certain court appeals of a contested grant as well.

Multiple and Cross-Ownership Rules. The Communications Act and FCC rules impose specific limits on
the number of commercial radio stations an entity can own in a single market and the combination of radio
stations, television stations and newspapers that any entity can own in a single market. The radio multiple-
ownership rules may preclude us from acquiring certain radio stations we might otherwise seek to acquire. The
ownership rules also effectively prevent us from selling radio stations in a market to a buyer that has reached its
ownership limit in the market unless that buyer divests other radio stations. The local radio ownership rules are
as follows:

¢ in markets with 45 or more radic‘ stations, ownership is limited to eight commercial radio stations, no
more than five of which can be either AM or FM;

* in markets with 30 to 44 radio stations, ownership is limited to seven commercial radio stations, no
more than four of which can be either AM or FM;

* in markets with 15 to 29 radio stations, ownership is limited to six commercial radio stations, no more
than four of which can be either AM or FM; and

|

* in markets with 14 or fewer radio stations, ownership is limited to five commercial radio stations or no
more than 50% of the market’s total, whichever is lower, and no more than three of which can be either
AM or FM.

In June 2003, the FCC adopted rules, which changed the methodology by which it defines a particular radio

market and counts radio stations to deternliline compliance with the radio multiple ownership restrictions. Such
changes generally reduce the number of r?dio stations counted as being in a “market.” The FCC’s new rules also
provide that parties which own groups of uradio stations that comply with the previous multiple ownership rules,

but do not comply with the new limits, wiIHII be allowed to retain those groups on a “grandfathered” basis, but will
not be allowed to transfer or assign those groups intact unless such transfer or assignment is to certain eligible

small businesses. A temporary stay of the%e rules was lifted in August 2004 and they are now in effect. Under
these rules, our ability to transfer or assign our radio stations as a group to a single buyer in one of our current
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markets may be limited. In June 2004, the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit remanded to the
FCC for further justification or modification the FCC’s decision to retain the numerical limits on local radio
ownership set forth above. Pending action on such remand, the FCC has continued to apply such limits.

The FCC’s radio/television cross-ownership rules permit a single owner to own up to two television
stations, consistent with the FCC’s rules on common ownership of television stations, together with one radio
station in all markets. In addition, an owner will be permitted to own additional radio stations, not to exceed the
local radio ownership limits for the market, as follows:

* in markets where 20 media voices will remain after the consummation of the proposed transaction, an
owner may own an additional five radio stations, or, if the owner only has one television station, an
additional six radio stations; and

< in markets where 10 media voices will remain after the consummation of the proposed transaction, an
owner may own an additional three radio stations.

A media voice includes each independently-owned, full power television and radio station and each daily
newspapet, plus one voice for all cable television systems operating in the market.

In addition to the limits on the number of radio stations and radio/television combinations that a single
owner may own, the FCC’s broadcast/newspaper cross-ownership rule prohibits the same owner from owning a
broadcast station and a daily newspaper in the same geographic market.

As part of its rulemaking order on broadcast ownership in June 2003, the FCC adopted new rules which
would eliminate television-radio cross ownership restrictions in markets with four or more television stations,
and would relax newspaper-broadcast cross ownership restrictions in markets with between four and eight
television stations (inclusive). Under these new rules, cross ownership among newspapers, radio and television
stations would not be permitted in markets with fewer than four television stations and would not be restricted in
markets with nine or more television stations. The Third Circuit Court of Appeals has remanded certain aspects
of these rules to the FCC for further justification or modification, and these new rules have been stayed by the
Court pending the Court’s review of the FCC’s action on remand. In the meantime the FCC has continued to
apply its previous rules regarding cross ownership.

The FCC generally applies its ownership limits to attributable interests held by an individual, corporation,
partnership or other association. In the case of corporations controlling broadcast licenses, the interests of
officers, directors and those who, directly or indirectly, have the right to vote 5% or more of the corporation’s
voting stock are generally attributable. However, certain passive investors are attributable only if they hold 20%
or more of the corporation’s voting stock. In addition, the interests of minority shareholders in a corporation
generally are not attributable if a single entity or individual holds 50% or more of that corporation’s voting stock.

The FCC also has a rule, known as the equity-debt-plus rule, which causes certain creditors or investors to
be attributable owners of a radio station. Under this rule, a major programming supplier or a same-market owner
will be an attributable owner of a radio station if the supplier or owner holds debt or equity, or both, in the radio
station that is greater than 33% of the value of the radio station’s total debt plus equity. A major programming
supplier includes any programming supplier that provides more than 15% of the radio station’s weekly
programming hours. A same-market owner includes any attributable owner of a media company, including
broadcast stations, cable television and newspapers, located in the same market as the radio station, but only if
the owner is attributable under an FCC attribution rule other than the equity-debt-plus rule. The attribution rules
limit the number of radio stations we may acquire or own in any market.

Alien Ownership Rules. The Communications Act prohibits the issuance or holding of broadcast licenses
by persons who are not U.S. citizens, whom the FCC rules refer to as “aliens,” including any corporation if more

than 20% of its capital stock is owned or voted by aliens. In addition, the FCC may prohibit any corporation from -
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holding a broadcast license if the corporatlon is controlled by any other corporation of which more than 25% of
the capital stock is owned of record or voted by aliens, if the FCC finds that the prohibition is in the public
interest. Our certificate of incorporation prohibits the ownership, voting and transfer of our capital stock in
violation of the FCC restrictions, and prohibits the issuance of capital stock or the voting rights such capital stock
represents to or for the account of aliens or corporations otherwise subject to domination or control by aliens in
excess of the FCC limits. The certificate of incorporation authorizes our board of directors to enforce these
prohibitions. For example, the certificate ?f incorporation provides for the redemption of shares of our capital
stock by action of the board of directors to the extent necessary to comply with these alien ownership restrictions.
|

Time Brokerage Agreements. It ianot uncommon for radio stations to enter into what have commonly
been referred to as time brokerage agreem\ents While these agreements may take varying forms, under a typical
time brokerage agreement, separately owned and licensed radio stations agree to enter into cooperative
arrangements of varying sorts, subject to c\‘:omphance with the requirements of antitrust laws and with FCC’s
rules and policies. Under these arrangemeunts separately-owned radio stations could agree to function
cooperatively in programming, adverusmg sales and similar matters, subject to the requirement that the licensee
of each radio station maintain mdependenpt control over the programming and operations of its own radio station.
One typical type of time brokerage agreerﬁlent is a programming agreement between two separately-owned radio
stations serving a common service area, whereby the licensee of one radio station provides substantial portions of
the broadcast programming for airing on the other licensee’s radio station, subject to ultimate editorial and other
controls being exercised by the latter licelﬁsee, and sells advertising time during those program segments.

|

The FCC’s rules provide that a radiolstation that brokers more than 15% of the weekly broadcast time on
another radio station serving the same ma“{ket will be considered to have an attributable ownership interest in the
brokered radio station for purposes of FCC’s local radio ownership limits. As a result, in a market where we own
a radio station, we would not be permitted to enter into a time brokerage agreement with another radio station in
the same market if we could not own the brokered radio station under the multiple ownership rules, unless our
programming on the brokered radio statioh constituted 15% or less of the brokered radio station’s programming
time on a weekly basis. FCC rules also pr‘)hibit a broadcast station from duplicating more than 25% of its
programming on another radio station in tFe same broadcast service, that is AM-AM or FM-FM, either through
common ownership of the two radio stations or through a time brokerage agreement, where the brokered and
brokering radio stations which it owns or programs serve substantially the same area.
\

Radio stations may also enter into wf;at are commonly known as joint sales agreements. In a typical joint
sales agreement, separately owned and lic‘;ensed radio stations agree to enter into cooperative arrangements
involving the sale of advertising time and ithe collection of proceeds from such sales, but involving none or only a
limited amount of programming time. Such arrangements are subject to compliance with the requirements of the
antitrust laws and the FCC’s rules and policies. A radio station that sells more than 15% of the weekly
advertising time of another radio station serving the same market is deemed to have an attributable interest in that

other radio station.

3
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Programming and Operations. The Communications Act requires broadcasters to serve the public

interest. The FCC gradually has relaxed or

in the past to promote the broadcast of cer
community of license. A licensee continug
to issues of the radio station’s community

Complaints from listeners concerning a ra

eliminated many of the more formalized procedures it had developed
tain types of programming responsive to the needs of a radio station’s
s to be required, however, to present programming that is responsive
of license and to maintain records demonstrating this responsiveness.
dio station’s programming often will be considered by the FCC when it

evaluates renewal applications of a licens?e although listener complaints may be filed and considered by the
FCC at any time. Such complaints are required to be maintained in the radio station’s public file. Radio stations

also must pay regulatory and application fees and follow various rules promulgated under the Communications

Act. Those rules regulate, among other thi

advertisement of contests and lotteries, err‘
operations, including limits on human exp

‘ngs, political advertising, sponsorship identifications, the

ployment practices, obscene and indecent broadcasts and technical
osure to radio frequency radiation.
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The FCC’s rules on equal employment opportunities prohibit employment discrimination by radio stations
on the basis of race, religion, color, national origin, and gender; and require broadcasters to implement programs
to promote equal employment opportunities at their radio stations. The rules generally require broadcasters to
widely disseminate information about full-time job openings to all segments of the community to ensure that all
qualified applicants have sufficient opportunity to apply for the job, to send job vacancy announcements to
recruitment organizations and others in the community indicating an interest in all or some vacancies at the radio
station, and to implement a number of specific longer-term recruitment outreach efforts, such as job fairs,
internship programs, and interaction with educational and community groups from among a menu of approaches
itemized by the FCC. Radio stations with ten or more full-time employees in a given market must file a Mid-term
EEO Report with the FCC midway through the license term. Broadcasters must prepare and place in their public
files and on their websites an annual EEO report, and to file the previous two reports with the FCC along with the
Mid-term EEO Report and the renewal application. The applicability of these policies to part-time employment
opportunities is the subject of a pending further rule making proceeding.

FCC decisions hold that a broadcast station may not deny a candidate for federal political office a request
for broadcast advertising time solely on the grounds that the amount of time requested is not the standard length
of time, which the radio station offers to its commercial advertisers. This policy has not had a material impact on
our programming and commercial advertising operations but the policy’s future impact is uncertain.

Proposed and Recent Changes. Congress and the FCC may in the future consider and adopt new laws,
regulations and policies regarding a wide variety of matters that could affect, directly or indirectly, the operation,
ownership and profitability of our radio stations, including the loss of audience share and advertising revenues
for our radio stations, and an inability to acquire additional radio stations or to finance those acquisitions. Such
matters may include:

» changes in the FCC’s multiple-ownership, cross-ownership and attribution policies;

» regulatory fees, spectrum use fees or other fees on FCC licenses;

¢ streaming fees for radio;

» foreign ownership of broadcast licenses;

* revisions to the FCC’s rules relating to political broadcasting, including free airtime to candidates;

* technical and frequency allocation matters; and

* proposals to restrict or prohibit the advertising of beer, wine and other alcoholic beverages on radio.
Finally, the FCC has adopted procedures for the auction of broadcast spectrum in circumstances where two

or more parties have filed for new or major change applications that are mutually exclusive. Such procedures
may limit our efforts to modify or expand the broadcast signals of our radio stations.

We cannot predict what other matters might be considered in the future by the FCC or Congress, nor can we
judge in advance what impact, if any, the implementation of any of these proposals or changes might have on our
business.

Federal Antitrust Laws. The agencies responsible for enforcing the federal antitrust laws, the Federal
Trade Commission or the Department of Justice, may investigate certain acquisitions. We cannot predict the
outcome of any specific FTC or Department of Justice investigation. Any decision by the FTC or the Department
of Justice to challenge a proposed acquisition could affect our ability to consummate the acquxsmon or to
consummate it on the proposed terms.

For an acquisition meeting certain size thresholds, the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act requires the parties to file
Notification and Report Forms concerning antitrust issues with the FTC and the Department of Justice and to
observe specified waiting period requirements before consummating the acquisition. If the investigating agency
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rajses substantive issues in connection Wi“lth a proposed transaction, then the parties frequently engage in lengthy
discussions or negotiations with the investigating agency concerning possible means of addressing those issues,

including restructuring the proposed acqu“isition or divesting assets. In addition, the investigating agency could
file suit in federal court to enjoin the acqt‘llisition or to require the divestiture of assets, among other remedies. In
addition, acquisitions, whether or not required to be reported under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Act, may be

investigated by the FTC, the Department \(')f Justice or other state authorities under the antitrust laws before or
after consummation. In addition, private parties may under certain circumstances bring legal action to challenge
an acquisition under the antitrust laws.

As part of its increased scrutiny of radio station acquisitions, the Department of Justice has stated publicly

that it believes that local marketing agreeri‘nents, joint sales agreements, time brokerage agreements and other
similar agreements customarily entered into in connection with radio station transfers could violate the Hart-

Scott-Rodino Act if such agreements take effect prior to the expiration of the waiting period under the Hart-
Scott-Rodino Act. Furthermore, the Department of Justice has noted that joint sales agreements may raise

antitrust concerns under Section 1 of the Sherman Act and has challenged joint sales agreements in certain

locations. The Department of Justice also has stated publicly that it has established certain revenue and audience
share concentration benchmarks with resp“gct to radio station acquisitions, above which a transaction may receive
additional antitrust scrutiny. However, to date, the Department of Justice has also investigated transactions that

! .
do not meet or exceed these benchmarks a“nd has cleared transactions that do exceed these benchmarks.

[
W
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 1

CAUTIONARY NOTE Rl?GARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Qur Form 10-K disclosure and analyl,s\is concerning our operations, cash flows and financial position,
including, in particular, the likelihood of our success in developing and expanding our business, include
forward-looking statements within the mea‘“ning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the
Exchange Act. Statements that are predicti]ve in nature, that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions,
or that include words such as “expects, ”anricipates, 7 “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “estimates” and similar
expressions are forward-looking statements. Although these statements are based upon assumptions we consider
reasonable, they are subject to risks and uncertainties that are described more fully below. Accordingly, we can

give no assurance that we will achieve the results anticipated or implied by our forward-looking statements.

3l ” e » o«

The radio broadcasting industry faces m‘any unpredictable business risks that could have a material
adverse affect on our advertising revenues.

Our future operations are subject to many business risks, including those risks that specifically influence the
radio broadcasting industry, which could have a material adverse affect on our business. These risks include, but
are not limited to:

* shifts in population, demographics| or audience preferences;

* increased competition for advertisiiing revenues with other radio stations, television stations and other
entertainment and communication§ media; and

+ changes in government regulations“" and policies and actions of federal regulatory bodies, including the
Federal Communications Commiss‘ion, Internal Revenue Service, United States Department of Justice,
and the Federal Trade Commission.

In addition, we believe that for most businesses advertising is a discretionary business expense, meaning
that spending on advertising tends to decline disproportionately during economic recession or downturn as
compared to other types of business spending. Consequently, a recession or downturn in the United States
economy or the economy of an individual géographic market in which we own radio stations would likely
adversely affect our advertising revenues and our results of operations.
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Our radio stations may not be able to compete effectively in their respective markets for advertising
revenues, which could adversely affect our revenue and cash flow.

We operate in a highly competitive business. A decline in our audience share or advertising rates in a
particular market may cause a decline in the revenue and cash flow of our stations located in that market. Our
radio stations compete for audiences and advertising revenues within their respective markets directly with other
radio stations, as well as with other media. These other media include newspapers, magazines, network, satellite
and cable television, outdoor advertising, direct mail, and satellite radio.

Our radio stations could suffer a reduction in ratings or advertising revenue and could incur increased
promotional and other expenses if:

* another radio station in a market was to convert its programming to a format similar to, and thereby
compete more directly with, one of our radio stations; or

* anew radio station was to adopt a comparable format or if an existing competitor were to improve its
audience share.

Other radio broadcasting companies may enter into markets in which we operate or may operate in the
future. These companies may be larger and have more financial resources than we have. Our radio stations may
not be able to maintain or increase their current audience ratings and advertising revenues.

We are dependent on federally-issued licenses to operate our radio stations and are subject to extensive
federal regulation.

The radio broadcasting industry is subject to extensive regulation by the FCC under the Communications
Act. We are required to obtain licenses from the FCC to operate our radio stations. Licenses are normally granted
for renewable terms of eight years. Although the vast majority of FCC radio station licenses are routinely
renewed, we cannot assure you that the FCC will approve our future renewal applications or that the renewals
will be for full eight-year terms or will not include conditions or qualifications. The non-renewal, or renewal with
substantial conditions or modifications, of one or more of our licenses could have a material adverse effect on us.

KCYE-FM’s license has not yet been renewed. We timely-filed a renewal application in June 2005. Because
we filed a timely renewal application, we continue to operate the radio station under this license in the ordinary
course. We do not anticipate non-renewal.

WQAM-AM’s license renewal is currently subject to objections and indecency-related proceedings at the
FCC, described below, and that renewal has not yet been granted. We timely-filed a renewal application in
October 2003. Because we filed a timely renewal application, we continue to operate the radio station under this
license in the ordinary course. We do not anticipate non-renewal.

We must comply with extensive FCC regulations and policies in the ownership and operation of our radio
stations. FCC regulations limit the number of radio stations that a licensee can own in a market, which could
restrict our ability to consummate any future transactions and in certain circumstances could require us to divest
one or more radio stations. The FCC also requires radio stations to comply with certain technical requirements to
limit interference between two or more radio stations. If the FCC relaxes these technical requirements, it could
impair the signals transmitted by our radio stations and could have a material adverse effect on us. Moreover,
these FCC regulations and others may change over time and we cannot assure you that those changes would not
have a material adverse effect on us.

The FCC continues vigorous enforcement of its indecency rules, which could have a material adverse effect
on our business.

The FCC’s rules prohibit the broadcast of obscene material at any time and indecent material between the
hours of 6 am and 10 pm. Broadcasters risk violating the prohibition on the broadcast of indecent material
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because of the vagueness of the FCC’s definition of indecent material, coupled with the spontaneity of live
programming. During the last few years, the FCC has stepped up its enforcement activities as they apply to
indecency, and has threatened to initiate lic"ense revocation or license renewal proceedings against broadcast
licensees for a category of undefined * senoHus indecency violations. The FCC has also expanded the breadth of
indecency regulation to include material that could be considered “blasphemy,” “‘personally reviling epithets,”

“profanity” and vulgar or coarse words amci‘)untmg to a nuisance. As a result, in the event that we broadcast
material falling within the expanded breadt%\ of the FCC’s regulation, we could be subject to license revocation,
renewal or qualifications proceedings, whic&h would put the licenses that we depend on for our operations in
jeopardy. Legislation has also been introduced in Congress that would significantly increase the penalties for
broadcasting indecent programming. l‘i‘

In February 2004, the FCC initiated aniL enforcement inquiry in response to allegations that WQAM-AM had

broadcast indecent material on one day in Se eptember 2003. In November 2004, the FCC issued to us a notice of

apparent liability for a monetary forfeiture (“)f $55,000 for alleged indecency violations relating to broadcasts on

two additional days in September 2003 at V&QAM AM. In December 2004, the FCC initiated an enforcement
inquiry in response to allegations that WQAM AM had broadcast indecent material on eight different dates in
2004 on the Howard Stern Show; that i 1nqu1ry also relates to WRXK-FM, which also carried the Howard Stern
Show at that time. In August 2003, the FCCH initiated an enforcement i mqulry in response to allegations that
WQAM-AM had broadcast indecent material on four different occasions’ that inquiry also relates to WRXK.
WQAM'’s license has not yet been rcnewed.” We timely-filed a renewal application in October 2003. Because we
filed a timely renewal application, we continue to operate the radio station under this license in the ordinary

course.

We may in the future become subject to additional inquiries or proceedings related to our radio stations’
broadcast of indecent or obscene material. Tio the extent that these pending inquiries or other proceedings result
in the imposition of fines, revocation of anyjof our radio station licenses or denials of license renewal
applications, our results of operation and business could be materially adversely affected.

We may not remain competitive if we do not respond to changes in technology, standards and services that
affect our industry.

The radio broadcasting industry is subject to technological change, evolving industry standards and the
emergence of other media technologies and services. We may not have the resources to acquire and deploy other
technologies or to introduce new services that could compete with these other technologies. Competition arising
from other technologies or regulatory change may have an adverse effect on the radio broadcasting industry or on

our company. Various otheor audio technolog‘«ies and services that have been developed and introduced, include:

» satellite delivered digital audio radio services that offer numerous programming channels and the sound
quality of compact discs;

¢ audio programming by cable systems, direct broadcast satellite systems, internet content providers,
personal communications services and other digital audio broadcast formats;

e AM radio stations in the expanded AM band;

¢ in-band on-channel digital radio, wlﬂlich provides multi-channel, multi-format digital radio services in
the same bandwidth currently occupied by traditional AM and FM radio services; and

* low power FM radio, which has resulted in non-commercial FM radio broadcast outlets that serve small,
localized areas.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, that competition arising from other technologies or regulatory change
may have on the radio broadcasting industry or on our financial condition and results of operations.
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We may not be successful in identifying, financing, consummating and integrating future acquisitions, an
element of our business strategy, which could significantly impair our future growth.

We believe that in order to continue to compete effectively in our industry, we need to identify radio
stations that meet certain criteria and consummate acquisitions of such stations on terms that are both
economically and commercially acceptable to us. During the past three fiscal years, however, we were unable to
identify any material radio station acquisitions that satisfied these requirements. As a result, during that time, we
did not acquire any stations.

While we intend to continue to pursue our acquisition strategy, we cannot assure you that we will be able to
identify radio stations that meet our acquisition requirements and consummate future acquisitions. Additionally,
even if we are successful in identifying acceptable targets, our ability to consummate acquisitions is subject to a
number of risks, including the risks that:

*  our competitors may be able to outbid us for acquisitions because they have greater financial resources;

» required regulatory approvals may result in unanticipated delays in, or prohibitions of, completing
acquisitions; and

* we may be unable to raise any additional financing necessary to consummate such acquisitions and
additional financing may not be available to us on terms that are acceptable to us or permitted under our
credit facility.

Even if we are able to consummate acquisitions, we cannot assure you that we will be successful in
integrating the operations of the acquired radio station or radio stations into our existing operations or that we
will realize the benefits that we expect to realize in connection with such acquisitions. Moreover, consummating
these acquisitions could also result in the incurrence of additional debt and related interest expense as well as
unforeseen contingent liabilities, all of which could have a material adverse effect of our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We have substantial debt that could have important consequences to you.

We have debt that is substantial in relation to our stockholders’ equity. As of December 31, 2005, we had
long-term debt of $144.4 million and stockholders’ equity of $88.0 million. Our long-term debt is substantial in
amount and could have an impact on you. For example, it could:

» require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to debt service, thereby
reducing the availability of cash flow for other purposes, including ongoing capital expenditures and
future acquisitions;

* impair our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions
and general corporate or other purposes;

*  limit our ability to compete, expand and make capital improvements;

* increase our vulnerability to economic downturns, limit our ability to withstand competitive pressures
and reduce our flexibility in responding to changing business and economic conditions; and

« limit or prohibii our ability to pay dividends and make other distributions.

As of February 28, 2006, we had $75.0 million in remaining commitments available under our credit
facility; however, as of February 28, 2006 our maximum total leverage covenant would have limited additional
borrowings to $48.8 million. Our ability to reduce our total leverage ratio by increasing operating cash flow and/
or decreasing long-term debt will determine how much, if any, of the remaining commitments under our credit
facility will be available to us in the future. Poor financial results or unanticipated expenses could result in our
failure to maintain or lower our total leverage ratio and we may not be permitted to make any additional
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borrowings under our credit facility. Moreover, we may need to modify or enter into a new credit facility to close
on any future acquisitions that we may, make. We also may seek to obtain other funding or additional financing in
connection with any such acquisition of radio stations, the full or partial repayment of our outstanding debt and/
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properties and business interruption insurance on some of our properties, but there can be no assurance that such
insurance would be adequate to cover all of our hurricane-related losses.

Our business depends on the efforts of key personnel and the loss of any one of them could have a material
adverse affect on our business.

Our business depends upon the continued efforts, abilities and expertise of our executive officers and other
key employees, including George G. Beasley, our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. Mr.
Beasley is 73 years old. We believe the unique combination of skills and experience possessed by Mr. Beasley
would be difficult to replace and that the loss of Mr. Beasley’s or other key executives’ expertise could impair
our ability to execute our operating and acquisition strategies.

Our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer controls Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. and
members of his immediate family own a substantial equity interest in Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. Their
interests may conflict with yours.

George G. Beasley is generally able to control the vote on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders.
Without the approval of Mr. Beasley, we will be unable to consummate transactions involving an actual or
potential change in control, including transactions in which you might otherwise receive a premium for your
shares over then current market prices. Shares of Class B common stock that Mr. Beasley beneficially owns
represent 78.4% of the total voting power of all classes of our common stock. Mr. Beasley also has currently
exercisable stock options to purchase 487,500 shares of Class A common stock. Members of his immediate
family also own significant amounts of Class B common stock and Class A common stock. Mr. Beasley will be
able to direct our management and policies, except with respect to those matters requiring a class vote under the
provisions of our amended certificate of incorporation, third amended and restated bylaws or applicable law.

Historically, we have entered into certain transactions with George G. Beasley, members of his immediate
family and affiliated entities that may conflict with the interests of our stockholders now or in the future. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation—Related Party
Transactions” and note 14 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Future sales by George G. Beasley or members of his family of our Class A common stock could adversely
affect its market price.

George G. Beasley and members of his family beneficially own the majority of all outstanding shares of
Class B common stock, which is convertible to Class A common stock on a ope-for-one basis. The market for
our Class A common stock could fall substantially if George G. Beasley and members of his family convert their
shares of Class B common stock to shares of Class A common stock and then sell large amounts of shares of
Class A common stock in the public market. These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, could
make it more difficult for us to raise capital by selling equity or equity-related securities in the future.

The difficulties associated with any attempt to gain control of our Company may adversely affect the price
of our Class A common stock.

Due to his large holdings of our common stock, George G. Beasley controls the decision whether any
change of control of the Company will occur. Moreover, some provisions of our certificate of incorporation, by-
laws and Delaware law could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us, even if a change of
control could be beneficial to you. In addition, the Communications Act and FCC rules and policies limit the
number of stations that one individual or entity can own, directly or by attribution, in a market. FCC approval for
transfers of control of FCC licensees and assignments of FCC licenses are also required. Because of the
limitations and restrictions imposed on us by these provisions and regulations, the trading price of our Class A
common stock may be adversely affected.
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There may not be an active market wfor our Class A common stock, making it difficult for you to sell your
stock.

Our stock may not be actively traded in the future. An illiquid market for our stock may result in price
volatility and poor execution of buy and sell orders for investors. Our stock price and trading volume have
fluctuated widely for a number of reasons including some reasons that may be unrelated to our business or
results of operations. This market volz“mhty could depress the price of our Class A common stock without regard
to our operating performance. In addlt‘ron our operating results may be below expectations of public market
analysts and investors. If this were to ‘accur the market price of our Class A common stock could decrease,

perhaps significantly.

!
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAﬁf COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES !

We own the buildings that house|the studio and office space for WTMR-AM in the Philadelphia, PA market
and WKIS-FM in the Miami-Ft. Laud}erdale, FL market. We also own the buildings that house the studio and
office space for all of our radio stations in the Fayetteville, NC, Greenville-New Bern-Jacksonville, NC, and
Augusta, GA markets,. We lease the s‘ udio and office space used by our remaining radio stations in the
Philadelphia PA and Miami-Ft. Lauderdale, FL markets and all of our radio stations in the Atlanta, GA, Boston,
MA, and Las Vegas, NV markets fronl‘[l various third parties. We lease the office and studio space used by all of
our radio stations in the West Palm- Boca Raton, FL market from Beasley Family Towers, Inc., which is owned
by George G. Beasley (our CEO), Bruce G. Beasley (our President and COO), Caroline Beasley (our CFO),
Brian E. Beasley and other family members of George G. Beasley. We lease the office and studio space used by
all of our radio stations in the Ft. Myers market from George G. Beasley. We currently lease our principal
executive offices located at 3033 Riviera Drive, Suite 200, Naples, FL 34103 from Beasley Broadcasting

Management Corp., which is wholly-c‘wned by George G. Beasley.

No one property is material to us | We believe that our properties are generally in good condition and
suitable for our operations. However we continually look for opportunities to upgrade our properties and may do
so in the future.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On February 13, 2004, the FCC i’ritiated an enforcement inquiry in response to allegations that WQAM-AM
had broadcast indecent material on one day in September 2003. On November 23, 2004, the FCC issued to us a
notice of apparent liability for a moﬁer‘ary forfeiture of $55,000 for alleged indecency violations relating to
broadcasts on two additional days in September 2003 at WQAM-AM. On December 6, 2004, the FCC initiated
an enforcement inquiry in response to Uallegations that WQAM-AM had broadcast indecent material on eight
different dates in 2004 on the Howard ‘Stern Show; that inquiry also relates to WRXK-FM, which also carried the

Howard Stern Show at that time. On A“ugust 15, 2005, the FCC initiated an enforcement inquiry in response to
allegations that WQAM-AM had broadcast indecent material on four different occasions; that inquiry also relates

to WRXK.

We currently and from time to time are involved in litigation incidental to the conduct of our business
including indecency claims and related proceedings at the FCC, but we are not a party to any lawsuit or other
proceedings that, in the opinion of management, is likely to have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MAT’]\" ERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered
by this report.
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PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information About Our Common Stock

We have two authorized and outstanding classes of equity securities: Class A common stock, $.001 par
value, and Class B common stock, $.001 par value. The only difference between the Class A and Class B
common stock is that Class A is entitled to one vote per share and Class B is entitled to ten votes per share. Class
B is convertible into Class A shares on a one-for-one share basis under certain circumstances. Our Class A
common stock trades on NASDAQ’s National Market System under the symbol “BBGL” There is no established
public trading market for our Class B common stock. Quarterly high and low prices of our Class A common
stock are shown below:

Fiscal 2005 ' High ~_Low
FirstQuarter ........ ... ... it e $18.29 $15.57
SeCOnd QUATTET . .\ttt et e e e 1796 14.10
Third QUarter . . . .ottt e e 1690 12.32
Fourth QUarter . . ... e e et e e e s 15.59  12.83

Fiscal 2004
First QUarter . ... .ottt ittt e e e e $19.34 $16.00
Second QUarer . ... i e 18.10 13.07
Third QUArt T . . ottt e e e e 16.29 12.90
Fourth Quarter .. ... ..o e e e e 17.80 14.72

Stockholders

As of February 28, 2006, the number of beneficial holders of our Class A common stock was approximately
600. As of February 28, 2006, the number of holders of our Class B common stock was 14.

Dividends

On December 9, 2003, our board of directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.0625 per share of our
Class A and Class B common stock. The dividend was paid on January 20, 2006, to stockholders of record on
December 30, 2005. We intend to pay regular quarterly cash dividends in 2006, however, all subsequent
dividends will be reviewed quarterly and declared by the board of directors at their discretion. Our amended
credit agreement permits us to pay dividends on our common stock in an amount up to an aggregate of $10.0
million per year. We did not pay any cash dividends during the past three fiscal years.

Share Repurchases

The following table presents information with respect to purchases we made of our Class A common stock
during the three months ended December 31, 2005.

Total Number
of Shares Approximate
Purchased as  Dollar Value
Part of That May Yet
Total Number Average Price Publicly Be Purchased
of Shares Paid per Announced Under the
Period Purchased Share Program Program
October 1 —=31,2005 ... ....... ... ity 20,500 $14.09 132,976 $23,097,277
November 1 -30,2005 ........................ 21,000 14.06 153,976 22,801,317
December 1-31,2005 ......................... 21,000 13.76 174,976 22,511,702

Total .. 62,500 .
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On July 29, 2004, we announced that at a meeting on June 10, 2004, our board of directors authorized us to
repurchase up to $25.0 million of our Elass A common stock over a period of one year from the date of
authorization. On May 12, 2005, our board of directors authorized a one-year extension of the repurchase period

to June 9, 2006. \

|
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA .

We have derived the selected ﬁnjnmal data shown below as of December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 and for
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002 from our consolidated financial statements not included in this
report. We have derived the selected financial data shown below as of December 31, 2004 and 2005 and for the
years ended 2003, 2004 and 2005 frorr‘ our audited consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this

report.

You should read the selected financial data together with “Management Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Op erations” and our consolidated financial statements and the related notes
included elsewhere in this report. 1
|
;‘ Year ended December 31,

‘ 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

(in thousands except per share data)

Operating Data:
Netrevenue .................... ‘h ............. $115,132 $114,692 $114,482 $122,205 $124,294
Operating income (loss) from continuing
operations .................... b $ (7.873) $ 28,609 §$ 27,067 $ 29,864 $ 25,098
Income (loss) from continuing operations . ......... $(21,815) $ 8,599 % 12,504 $ 12,031 $ 10,705
Netincome (108s) ..............hveiiin... $(22,134y $ (3,727) $ 12,771 $ 12,031 $ 10,705
Basic net income (loss) from continuing operations
pershare ..................... e $ (090) $ 035 $§ 052 $ 050 $ 044
Diluted net income (loss) from continuing operations
pershare ..................... L $ (090) $ 035 $ 051 $ 049 $ 044
Basic net income (loss) per share . ... ............ $ @©91) % (.15 $ 053 $ 050 $ 044
Diluted net income (loss) per share H ............. $ @©91) $ (015 % 052 $ 049 $ 044
| ) As of December 31,
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
| (in thousands)

Balance Sheet: ‘

Total aSSets . ... vii $319,299 $282,091 $277,891 $286,300 $280,817
Total long-termdebt ..............L............ 225,498 196,359 169,987 158,987 144,375
Total stockholders’ equity ....... T . 57,907 54,180 69,410 81,075 87,998

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATI‘DNS

Overview
General

We own and operate 41 radio stat10ns in the following ten markets: Atlanta, GA, Boston, MA, Philadelphia,
PA, Miami-Ft. Lauderdale, FL, Las Vegas NV, West Palm Beach-Boca Raton, FL, Ft. Myers-Naples, FL,
Fayetteville, NC, Greenville-New Bemn-Jacksonville, NC, and Augusta, GA. We refer to each group of radio
stations that we own in each radio market as a market cluster.

Recent Developments

On January 30, 2006, our credit agreement was amended to, among other things, increase the maximum
commitment under the revolving credit loan, reduce the amount of the term loan, extend the maturity date of the
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credit facility, increase the amount of dividends we are able to pay on our common stock, and revise certain
financial covenants. In connection with the amended credit agreement, we recorded a $0.7 million loss on
extinguishment of long-term debt during the first quarter of 2006.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS 123(R), Share-Based Payment. SFAS 123(R) requires entities
to recognize the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the
grant date fair value of those awards. As a result of the adoption of SFAS(R), we expect to record an additional
$0.3 million of stock-based compensation expense during 2006 related to previous grants of stock options. For
further discussion, see the Recent Pronouncements section elsewhere in this Item.

We tested our FCC broadcasting licenses for impairment as of December 31, 2005 in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. To assist in determing the fair value of our FCC
broadcasting licenses as of December 31, 2005, we obtained appraisals from an independent appraisal company.
As a result of the testing, we recorded an impairment loss of $2.0 million related to the FCC broadcasting
licenses in our Augusta, GA market cluster. For further discussion, see the Critical Accounting Policies section
elsewhere in this Item.

Financial Statement Presentation

The following discussion provides a brief description of certain key items that appear in our consolidated
financial statements and general factors that impact these items.

Net Revenue. Our net revenue is primarily derived from the sale of advertising airtime to local and
national advertisers. Net revenue is gross revenue less agency commissions. Local revenue generally consists of
advertising airtime sales to advertisers in a radio station’s local market either directly to the advertiser or through
the advertiser’s agency. National revenue generally consists of advertising airtime sales to agencies purchasing
advertising for multiple markets. National sales are generally facilitated by our national representation firm,
which serves as our agent in these transactions.

The advertising rates that we are able to charge and the number of advertisements that we can broadcast
without jeopardizing listener levels generally determine our net revenue. Advertising rates are primarily based on
the following factors:

» aradio station’s audience share in the demographic groups targeted by advertisers as measured
principally by quarterly reports issued by the Arbitron Ratings Company;

« the number of radio stations, as well as other forms of media, in the market competing for the attention
of the same demographic groups;

» the supply of, and demand for, radio advertising time; and

» the size of the market.

Our net revenue is affected by general economic conditions, competition and our ability to improve
operations at our market clusters. Seasonal revenue fluctuations are also common in the radio broadcasting

industry and are primarily due to variations in advertising expenditures by local and national advertisers. Our
revenues are typically lowest in the first calendar quarter of the year.

We use trade sales agreements to reduce cash paid for expenses by exchanging advertising airtime for goods
or services; however, we endeavor to minimize trade revenue in order to maximize cash revenue from our
available airtime. The following summary table presents a comparison of our trade sales revenue and expenses.

Year ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
Traderevenue ........... ... $6,356,638  $6,264,681 $4,811,436
Trade eXpenses . ......... ..., $5,894,725  $5,703,114  $4,506,082




Costs and Expenses. Our costs cnd expenses consist primarily of (1) programming, engineering, and
promotional expenses, reported as cost of services, and selling, general and administrative expenses incurred at
our radio stations, (2) general and adm][mlstratlve expenses, including compensation, insurance and other
expenses, incurred at our corporate offices, (3) stock-based compensation, and (4) depreciation and amortization.
We strive to control our operating expenses by centralizing certain functions at our corporate offices and
consolidating certain functions in each|of our market clusters.

Income Taxes. Our effective tax rate is approximately 41%, which differs from the federal statutory rate of
34% due to the effect of state income taxes and certain of our expenses that are not deductible for tax purposes.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts and related
disclosures. We consider an accounting estimate to be critical if:

. . . | . . .
* it requires assumptions to be made that were uncertain at the time the estimate was made; and

* changes in the estimate or different estimates that could have been selected could have a material impact
on our consolidated results of|operations or financial condition.

Impairment of FCC Broaa’castingl Licenses and Goodwill. We are required to estimate the fair value of our

FCC broadcasting licenses and reportn‘?g units on at least an annual basis. We combine our FCC broadcasting
licenses into single units of accountmg based on our market clusters for impairment testing purposes. To assist in

estimating the fair value of our FCC broadcastmg licenses as of December 31, 2005, we obtained appraisals from

an independent appraisal company. Th”e appraisal company estimated the fair values of our FM broadcast

licenses using discounted future cash f%ows and the fair values of our AM licenses using a market valuation
approach. The appraisal includes several assumptions and estimates including the determination of future cash

flows and an appropriate discount rate” If the appraisal company had made different assumptions or used
different estimates, including those used to determine future cash flows and the discount rate, the fair value of
our FCC broadcasting licenses could have been materially different. We recorded an impairment loss of $2.0
million related to the FCC broadcastm“‘g licenses in our Augusta, GA market cluster in 2005. For the purpose of

testing our goodwill for impairment, ”e have identified our market clusters as our reporting units. We used

internally-generated estimates of future cash flows to determine the fair value of each reporting unit as of
December 31, 2005. These estimates rgqmred management judgment and if we had made different assumptions
the fair value of our reporting units could have been materially different. We did not record any impairment
losses on our goodwill in 2005. There Hcan be no assurance that impairment of our FCC broadcasting licenses or

goodwill will not occur in future perlods

|

Impairment of Property and Equzpment We are required to assess the recoverability of our property and

equipment whenever an event has occurred that may result in an impairment loss. If such an event occurs, we
will compare estimates of related future undiscounted cash flows to the carrying amount of the asset. If the future
undiscounted cash flow estimates are l”ess than the carrying amount of the asset, we will reduce the carrying
amount to the estimated fair value. The determination of when an event has occurred and estimates of future cash
flows and fair value all require manag%ment judgment. The use of different assumptions or estimates may result
in alternative assessments that could be materially different. We did not identify any events that may have

resulted in an impairment loss on our ﬁroperty and equipment in 2005. There can be no assurance that

i
impairment of our property and equipment will not occur in future periods.

|

Valuation of Accounts Receivable. 'We continually evaluate our ability to collect our accounts receivable.
Our ongoing evaluation includes rev1eJ1 of specific accounts at our radio stations, the current financial condition
of our customers and our historical write-off experience. This ongoing evaluation requires management judgment
and if we had made different assumptions about these factors, the allowance for doubtful accounts could have

been materially different.
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Recent Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS 123(R), Share-Based Payment. SEAS 123(R) establishes
standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or
services. It also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that
are based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those equity
instruments. SFAS 123(R) replaces SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes APB
Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS 123(R) eliminates the alternative to use Opinion
25’s intrinsic value method of accounting that was provided in SFAS 123 as originally issued. Under Opinion 25,
issuing stock options to employees generally resulted in recognition of no compensation cost. SFAS 123(R)
requires entities to recognize the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments
based on the grant date fair value of those awards. As a result of the adoption of SFAS 123(R), we expect to
record an additional $0.3 million of stock-based compensation expense during 2006 related to previous grants of
stock options.

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS 154, Accounting Changes
and Error Corrections. SFAS 154 replaces APB Opinion 20, Accounting Changes and SFAS 3, Reporting
Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements, and changes the requirements for the accounting for, and
reporting of, a change in accounting principle. SFAS applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle and
to changes required by an accounting pronouncement that does not include specific transition provisions. SFAS
154 requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in accounting principle,
unless it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change.
SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2005. We do not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS 154 will have a material impact on our
earnings or financial position.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

The following summary table presents a comparison of our results of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2005 with respect to certain of our key financial measures. These changes illustrated in
the table are discussed in greater detail below. This section should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

Year ended December 31, Change

2004 2005 $ %o
NEITEVENUE . . o\ oot et e et et e $122,204,954 $124,293,932 $2,088978 1.7%
Costofservices ......... ... ivininnnnnnn. 40,382,608 41,095,051 712,443 1.8
Selling, general and administrative expenses .. ... 42,735,701 44,969,059 2,233,358 5.2
Corporate general and administrative expenses . .. 6,384,047 6,993,380 609,333 9.5
Stock-based compensation ................... — 1,096,612 1,096,612 —
Impairmentloss .......... ... ... ... ... ... — 2,002,968 2,002,968 —

Net Revenue. The $2.1 million increase in net revenue during the year ended December 31, 2005 was
primarily due to a $5.0 million increase at our Philadelphia market cluster and a $1.6 million increase at our Ft.
Myers-Naples market cluster due to improved performance in those markets. These increases were partially
offset by a $1.9 million decrease at our Miami-Ft. Lauderdale market cluster primarily due to the absence of
revenue from broadcasting the Miami Dolphins football games, which contributed $2.2 million in 2004, a $1.3
million decrease at our Augusta market cluster as a result of increased competition in that market, and a $0.7
million decrease at our Las Vegas market cluster primarily due to a format change at one of our radio stations in
that market during the fourth quarter. Net revenue during the year ended December 31, 2005 also includes an
aggregate $1.5 million decrease in trade sales revenue from our market clusters due to our continued efforts to
reduce the non-cash use of our available airtime. In addition, political advertising which is included in the above
net revenue amounts, contributed $34,000 in 2005 compared to approximately $1.5 million in 2004.
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Cost of Services. The $0.7 million increase in cost of services during the year ended December 31, 2005
was primarily due to a $0.8 million mc‘Hrease at our Las Vegas market cluster primarily due to increased
promotional expenses related to a change in format during the fourth quarter of 2005 and a $0.5 million increase
at our Ft. Myers-Naples market cluster“ due to increased programming and promotional expenses in that market.
These increases were partially offset by a $0.7 million decrease at our Miami-Ft. Lauderdale market cluster
primarily due to the elimination of program rights fees associated with the Miami Dolphins football team
program rights agreement, which cost $3.7 million in 2004. This decrease in our Miami-Ft. Lauderdale market
cluster was partially offset by a $1.4 m”1111on increase in program rights fees to broadcast the Florida Marlins

baseball games and a $1.1 million i increase in contractual costs related to certain on-air personalities.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. The $2.2 million increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2005 was primarily due to $1.4 million of employee
separation costs at our Philadelphia market cluster and increased sales commissions incurred in connection with
generating the increase in our net revenue.

Corporate General and Adminz’snhative Expenses. The $0.6 million increase in corporate general and

administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2005 was primarily due to increased compensation,

professional fees and other costs assoct

Stock-Based Compensation. On
Equity Plan and recorded $1.1 million
December 31, 2005.

Impairment Loss. We tested our
accordance with the provisions of SFA

ated with complying with regulations applicable to public companies.
July 1, 2005, we granted 267,500 shares of restricted stock under our 2000

of stock-based compensation related to these grants during the year ended

FCC broadcasting licenses for impairment as of December 31, 2006 in
S 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. As a result of the testing, we

recorded an impairment loss of $2.0 million related to the FCC broadcasting licenses in our Augusta market

I

cluster. For further discussion, see the Critical Accounting Policies section elsewhere in this Item.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Com

The following summary table preh‘

pared to Year Ended December 31, 2003

ents a comparison of our results of operations for the years ended

December 31, 2003 and 2004 with respect to certain of our key financial measures. These changes illustrated in

the table are discussed in greater detail
financial statements and notes to conso

below. This section should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
lidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

Year ended December 31, Change
\ 2003 2004 $ %
Netrevenue ................0.coiiiin.n. $114,482,240 $122,204,954 $7,722,714 6.7%
Cost of services ............. . 39,461,502 40,382,608 921,106 2.3
Selling, general and administrativ% expenses ..... 39,559,535 42,735,701 3,176,166 8.0
Corporate general and administrative expenses 5,494,605 6,384,047 889,442 16.2

Net Revenue. The $7.7 million i
to improved performance in eight of ou

crease in net revenue during the year ended December 31, 2004 was due
r ten market clusters and included a $2.0 million increase at our Las

Vegas market cluster, a $1.8 million increase at our Ft. Myers-Naples market cluster, and a $1.0 million increase
at our Fayetteville market cluster. Net tevenue also included an increase of $2.0 million at our Philadelphia
market cluster despite a $0.5 million dgcrease at WRDW-FM, which changed formats during the fourth quarter
of 2003, and an increase of $0.5 nulho% at our Miami-Ft. Lauderdale market cluster despite a $0.8 million

decrease at WQAM-AM due to the abs

played in 2003 but did not take place in

net revenue amounts, contributed $1.5
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Cost of Services. 'The $0.9 million increase in cost of services during the year ended December 31, 2004
was primarily due to an increase in programming and promotional expenses at eight of our ten market clusters.
The increase was partially offset by a $0.7 million decrease at WQAM-AM due to the absence of expenses
related to games for the professional sports teams that were played in 2003 but did not take place in 2004.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. The $3.2 million increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2004 was primarily due to increased sales
commissions, incurred in connection with generating the increase in our net revenue.

Corporate General and Administrative Expenses. The $0.9 million increase in corporate general and
administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2004 was primarily due to increased costs,
including compensation, associated with complying with regulations applicable to public companies.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview. Our primary sources of liquidity are internally generated cash flow and our credit facility. Our
primary liquidity needs have been, and for the next twelve months and thereafter are expected to continue to be,
for working capital, debt service, and other general corporate purposes, including capital expenditures.
Historically, our capital expenditures have not been significant. In addition to property and equipment associated
with radio station acquisitions, our capital expenditures have generally been, and are expected to continue to be,
related to the maintenance of our studio and office space and the technological improvement, including upgrades
necessary to broadcast HD Radio™, and maintenance of our broadcasting equipment. We have also purchased or
constructed office and studio space in some of our markets to facilitate the consolidation of our operations. Other
liquidity needs for the next twelve months and thereafter may also include additional share repurchases,
payments of cash dividends and radio station acquisitions. Our credit agreement permits us to repurchase up to
$50.0 million of our common stock and our board of directors has authorized us to repurchase up to $25.0 million
of our common stock. As of December 31, 2005, we have repurchased $2.5 million of our Class A common
stock. Our amended credit agreement also permits us to pay dividends on our common stock in an amount up to
an aggregate of $10.0 million per year. We expect to provide for future liquidity needs through one or a
combination of the following sources of liquidity:

* internally generated cash flow;
¢ our credit facility;

» additional borrowings, other than under our existing credit facility, to the extent permitted thereunder;
and

» additional equity offerings.

We believe that we will have sufficient liquidity and capital resources to permit us to provide for our
liquidity requirements and meet our financial obligations for the foreseeable future. However, poor financial
results, unanticipated acquisition opportunities or unanticipated expenses could give rise to additional debt
servicing requirements or other additional financing or liquidity requirements sooner than we expect and we may
not secure financing when needed or on acceptable terms.

As of December 31, 2005, we held $16.3 million in cash and cash equivalents and had $75.0 million in
remaining commitments available under the revolving portion of our credit facility; however, as of December 31,
2003, our maximum total leverage covenant would have limited additional borrowings to $48.8 million. Our ability
to reduce our total leverage ratio by increasing operating cash flow and/or decreasing long-term debt will determine
how much, if any, of the remaining commitments under the revolving portion of our credit facility will be available
to us in the future. Poor financial results or unanticipated expenses could result in our failure to maintain or lower
our total leverage ratio and we may not be permitted to make any additional borrowings under the revolving portion
of our credit facility. Additionally, to the extent that we determine to make additional share repurchases or make
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future dividend payments instead of rep‘aying indebtedness, or if we incur additional indebtedness in order to make

such repurchases or dividend payments,“ our total debt ratio may be adversely affected and we may not be permitted

to make additional borrowings under th:n‘a revolving portion of our credit facility.

The following summary table presents a comparison of our capital resources for the years ended December
31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 with respect to certain of our key measures affecting our liquidity. The changes set forth
in the table are discussed in greater det'Hail below. This section should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and notes to consc}lidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

Year ended December 31,

) 2003 2004 2005
Net cash provided by operating ac‘,‘tivities ............ $ 20,337,950 §$ 24,736,120 $ 20,467,028
Net cash provided by (used in) in\”/esting activities . ... 8,405,461 (3,708,394)  (2,400,555)
Net cash used in financing activiti‘es ................ (26,461,269) (13,907,032) (16,637,962)

Net increase in cash and cash equi‘valents ....... e 2,282,142 7,120,694 1,428,511

|

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities decreased for the
year ended December 31, 2005 compafed to the same period in 2004 primarily due to a $4.1 million increase in
cash paid for income taxes due to the e“xhaustion of our remaining federal and certain state net operating loss
carryforwards in 2004, a $3.1 million increase in cash paid for station operating expenses and a $0.6 million
increase in cash paid for corporate gen@ral and administrative expenses. This decrease was partially offset by a

$3.3 million increase in cash receipts from the sale of advertising airtime.

|

Net cash provided by operating activities increased for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the
same period in 2003 despite a $6.6 million increase in cash paid for station operating expenses and a $0.9 million
increase in cash paid for corporate general and administrative expenses. The increase in net cash was primarily
due to an $8.2 million increase in cashreceipts from the sale of advertising airtime and a $4.4 million decrease in
cash paid for interest during 2004.

H
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities. Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended December

31, 2005 was primarily due to cash pa)\‘lments for capital expenditures of $3.2 million; which were partially offset

by cash proceeds of $0.6 million from | he sale of a building in Augusta, GA. Net cash used in investing activities

in 2004 was primarily due to cash payments for capital expenditures of $3.9 million primarily related to the
construction of a new building for offiée and studio space in Augusta, GA to consolidate our operations in that
market. Net cash provided by investingH activities in the same period in 2003 was primarily due to the receipt of
cash proceeds of $1.5 million from the”sale of one radio station in the New Orleans market, $4.8 million from the
sale of securities held for investment, and $3.35 million from the repayment of a note receivable. Cash payments

for capital expenditures were $1.4 milﬁon in 2003.

Net Cash Used In Financing Actilﬁin’es. Net cash used in financing activities in the year ended December
31, 2005 was primarily due to scheduled repayments of $5.6 million and voluntary repayments of $9.0 million of
borrowings under our credit facility and $1.9 million for purchases of our Class A common stock. Net cash used
in financing activities in the same peri&‘)‘d in 2004 was primarily due to the payment of fees of $2.3 million
associated with our new credit facility and $11.0 million of voluntary repayments of borrowings thereunder. Net
cash used in financing activities in the same period in 2003 was primarily due to the repayment of borrowings
under our old credit facility with $7.3 I%ﬁllion of scheduled repayments, $3.8 million of cash proceeds, including
interest, from the repayment of a note receivable, $1.5 million of cash proceeds from the sale of one radio station

in the New Orleans market, and $13.7 pﬁllion of voluntary repayments.

Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2005, our credit facility consisted of a revolving credit loan with a
maximum commitment of $75.0 million and a term loan of $150.0 million. The revolving credit loan and term
loan carried interest, based on LIBOR,‘at 4.2858% and 5.4375% as of December 31, 2004 and 2005,
respectively.
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We must pay a quarterly unused commitment fee equal to 0.375% on the unused portion of the revolving
credit loan. For the year ended December 31, 2005, our unused commitment fee was $0.3 million.

As of December 31, 2005, we were in compliance with all applicable financial covenants. As of December
31, 2005, as calculated pursuant to the terms of our credit agreement, our consolidated total debt ratio was 4.48
times consolidated operating cash flow, our interest coverage ratio was 4.38 times interest expense, and our fixed
charge coverage ratio was 1.48 times fixed charges. '

On January 30, 2006, we amended our credit agreement. The amended credit facility consists of a revolving
credit loan with a maximum commitment of $119.4 million and a term loan of $100.0 million. The revolving
credit loan includes a $10.0 million sub-limit for letters of credit, which may be increased to $20.0 million upon
our request and with the approval of the Bank of Montreal, Chicago Branch in its capacity as a letter of credit
issuer. At our election, the revolving credit loan and term loan may bear interest at either the base rate or LIBOR
plus a margin that is determined by our debt to operating cash flow ratio. The base rate is equal to the higher of
the prime rate or the overnight federal funds rate plus 0.5%. Interest on base rate loans is payable quarterly
through maturity. Interest on LIBOR loans is payable on the last day of the selected LIBOR period and, if the
selected period is longer than three months, every three months after the beginning of the LIBOR period. The
revolving credit loan and term loan mature on June 30, 2013. The scheduled reductions in the amount available
under the revolving credit loan may require principal repayments if the outstanding balance at that time exceeds
the maximum amount available under the revolving credit loan. In connection with the amended credit
agreement, we recorded a $0.7 million loss on extinguishment of long-term debt during the first quarter of 2006.

The amended credit facility is secured by substantially all of our assets and guaranteed jointly and severally
by all of our subsidiaries. The guarantees were issued to our lenders for repayment of the outstanding balance of
the amended credit facility. If we default under the terms of the amended credit agreement, the subsidiaries may
be required to perform under their guarantees. The maximum amount of payments the subsidiaries would have to
make in the event of default is $144.4 miilion. The guarantees for the revolving credit loan and term loan expire
on June 30, 2013.

As of January 30, 2006, the scheduled repayments of the credit facility for the next five years and thereafter
are as follows:

Revolving Total credit
credit loan - Term loan facility
2006 ... e e $ — 3 — 3 —
2007 . e — 3,750,000 3,750,000
2008 ... e A —_ 5,000,000 5,000,000
2000 .. — 7,250,000 7,250,000
20010 . . e — 8,000,000 8,000,000
Thereafter ........... .. .. ... .. . .. 44,375,000 76,000,000 120,375,000
Total ... .. $44,375,000 $100,000,000 $144,375,000

We are required to satisfy financial covenants, which require us to maintain specified financial ratios and to
comply with financial tests, such as ratios for maximum consolidated total debt, minimum interest coverage and
minimum fixed charges. As of January 30, 2006, these financial covenants included:

e Maximum Consolidated Total Debt Ratio. On the last day of each fiscal quarter for the period from
January 30, 2006 to December 31, 2007, our consolidated total debt must not exceed 6.0 times our
consolidated operating cash flow for the four quarters then ending (as those terms are defined in the
amended credit agreement). On the last day of each fiscal quarter for the period from January 1, 2008
through December 31, 2008, the maximum ratio is 5.5 times; on the last day of each fiscal quarter for
the period from January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009, the maximum ratio is 5.0 times; on the last
day of each fiscal quarter for all periods after January 1, 2010, the maximum ratio is 4.5 times.
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s Minimum Interest Coverage Ratzo Our consolidated operating cash flow for the four quarters ending
on the last day of each quarter must not have been less than 2.0 times the amount of our consolidated
cash interest expense for such four quarter period.

*  Minimum Fixed Charge Ratio‘. Our consolidated operating cash flow for any four consecutive quarters
must not be less than 1.1 times the amount of our consolidated fixed charges for such four quarter
period. Fixed charges includel cash interest expense, cash tax expense, capital expenditures, agency and

commitment fees and scheduled principal repayments.

Failure to comply with these ﬁnaldlcial covenants, to make scheduled interest payments or scheduled
principal repayments, or to comply w1th any other terms of our credit facility could result in the acceleration of
the maturity of our debt outstanding thereunder which could have a material adverse effect on our business or
results of operations.

The credit facility also contains other customary restrictive covenants. These covenants limit our ability to:

incur additional indebtedness and liens‘; enter into certain investments or joint ventures; consolidate, merge or

effect asset sales; enter sale and lease—lh)ack transactions; sell or discount accounts receivable; enter into

transactions with affiliates or stockholders; or chiange the nature of our business.

Contractual Obligations b

As of December 31, 2005, our contractual obligations consist of the following:

Payments due by period
2-3 4.5, More than
Contractual Obligations 1 year years years 5 years Total
Long-Term Debt (1) ............ $ — $ 8,750,000 $15,250,000 $120,375,000 $144,375,000
Interest 2) ......... ... .. ... © 7,074,245 15,343,945 14,059,336 14,895,352 51,372,878
Operating Leases (3) ............ 2,531,147 4,735,754 3,236,281 9,344,956 19,848,138
Purchase Obligations (4) ......... 9,166,010 14,414,315 1,932,158 2,500,000 28,012,483

Total Contractual Obligations . . . .. $18,771,402 343,244,014 $34,477,775 $147,115,308 $243,608,499

(1) Long-term debt consists of the ouHstanding principal under our credit facility, which was amended on
January 30, 2006 and reflects the rJH.evised amortization schedule.
(2) Interest consists of estimated interest payments until maturity under our amended credit facility using the

interest rate payable as of Deceml:‘ler 31, 2005.

(3) Operating leases includes leases fi o office and studio space and towers.

(4) Purchase obligations includes contracts for rating services, sports programming rights, consultants and on-
air personalities not employed by ‘lls.

|
Related Party Transactions

We lease office and studio space fﬁ)r three radio stations in Boca Raton, FL from Beasley Family Towers,
Inc. (“BFT”), which is owned by George G. Beasley, Bruce G. Beasley, Caroline Beasley, Brian E. Beasley and
other family members of George G. Beasley. The lease agreement expites on June 5, 2010. For the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, rental expense was approximately $82,000, $86,000 and $90,000,
respectively. We believe that this lease\agreement is on terms at least as favorable to us as could have been

obtained from a third party.

We lease land for office and studio space for nine radio stations in Augusta, GA from George G. Beasley.
The lease agreement expires on November 1, 2023. For the year ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005,
rental expense was approximately $5,000, $32,000 and $33,000, respectively. The lease agreement was based on
competitive bids from third parties and was reviewed by our Audit Committee. We believe that this lease

agreement is on terms at least as favorable to us as could have been obtained from a third party.
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From time to time, we lease aircraft for business trips from Beasley Aircraft Leasing, LLC, which is wholly-
owned by George G. Beasley. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 20035, rental expense was
approximately $70,000, $91,000 and $131,000, respectively. The lease rates are based on the operating cost
incurred by Beasley Aircraft Leasing, LLC therefore we believe that the lease rates are on terms at least as
favorable to us as could have been obtained from a third party.

The following related party transactions are based on agreements entered into prior to our initial public
offering in 2000 at which time we did not have an Audit Committee. However, these agreements were evaluated
by our board of directors at the time of entering the agreements and we believe that they are on terms at least as
favorable to us as could have been obtained from a third party.

In December 2000, we sold most of our radio towers and related real estate assets to BFT for $5.1 million in
unsecured notes. As of December 31, 2005, the aggregate outstanding balance of the notes receivable was $4.3
million. The notes are due in aggregate monthly payments of approximately $38,000, including interest at 6.77%.
The notes mature on December 28, 2020. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005 interest
income on the notes receivable from BFT was approximately $314,000, $305,000 and $294,000, respectively.

We lease radio towers for 19 radio stations under separate lease agreements from BFT. The lease
agreements expire on December 28, 2020. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, rental
expense was approximately $527,000, $527,000 and $529,000, respectively.

We lease a radio tower for WCHZ-FM in Augusta, GA from Wintersrun Communications, Inc., which is
owned by George G. Beasley and Brian E. Beasley. The lease agreement expires on April 30, 2014. For the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, rental expense was approximately $24,000, $24,000 and $25,000,
respectively.

We lease office and studio space for five radio stations in Ft. Myers, FL from George G. Beasley. The lease
agreements expire on August 31, 2009. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, rental expense
was approximately $115,000, $118,000 and $124,000, respectively.

We lease office space for our principal executive offices in Naples, FL from Beasley Broadcasting
Management Corp., which is wholly-owned by George G. Beasley. For the years ended December 31, 2003,
2004 and 2005, rental expense was approximately $100,000, $106,000 and $111,000, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005, future minimum payments to related parties for the next five years and thereafter,
which are included in the Contractual Obligations table above, are summarized as follows:

2006 .. $ 750,195
200 e 762,203
2008 774,796
2000 L 736,278
2000 o 575,678
Thereafter ........... .o i 5,190,848

Total ... $8,789,998




i
ITEM7A. QUANTITATIVE AND” QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS
Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices such as interest rates,
foreign currency exchange rates and co;lmmodity prices. Our primary exposure to market risk is interest rate risk

associated with our credit facility. As of December 31, 2005, all of our long-term debt bears interest at variable

rates. Accordingly, our earnings are afﬁected by changes in interest rates. Assuming the current level of
borrowings at variable rates and assuml‘ing a one-percentage point increase in the current interest rate under these
borrowings, we estimate that our annualized interest expense would increase by $1.1 million and our net income
would decrease by $0.7 million. In the event of an adverse change in interest rates, management may take actions
to mitigate our exposure. However, due to the uncertainty of the actions that would be taken and their possible
effects, this interest rate analysis assumes no such actions. Further, the analysis does not consider the effects of

the change in the level of overall economic activity that could exist in such an environment.

As of December 31, 2005, we are{a party to five interest rate swap agreements with a $75.0 million
aggregate notional amount. These agreements expire from May to August 2006. As of December 31, 2005, the
fair value of these agreements was a current asset of $1.0 million.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholder
Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 ax}d 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2005. In connection with 'our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited
the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index. These consolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the resp‘onsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our

audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements a‘re free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts z,”md disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used" and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentati‘on. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated ﬁn”lcmmal statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2005, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generz““illy accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a

whole, present fairly, in all material respflects, the information set forth therein.

|

We also have audited, in accordanc? with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as

of December 31, 2005, based on criteria
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
2006 expressed an unqualified opinion o

established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
of the Treadway Commission (COSQ), and our report dated March 6,
n management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal

control over financial reporting.
/s/ KPMG LLP
March 6, 2006

Tampa, Florida
Certified Public Accountants
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. ’

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2003, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, and
our report dated March 6, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

March 6, 2006
Tampa, Florida
Certified Public Accountants




BEA$

LEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

I

ASSETS

Current assets: |
Cash and cash equivalents ... .... i.
Accounts receivable, less allowance

2004 and $489,769 in 2005 . . . . |
Trade sales receivable

Other receivables .. ............ ‘[ ................................

Prepaid expenses .............. H
Derivative financial instruments . .}
Deferred tax assets ‘

Total current assets ........ {
Notes receivable from related parties . . !
Property and equipment, net .........!
FCC broadcasting licenses

Goodwill . ... e

Investments. ....................... ‘

for doubtful accounts of $546,207 in

Derivative financial inStruments . ..... 0. . . e

Other assets .

Total assets ...............

TOTAL LIABILITIES )i&ND STOCKHOLDERSY’

EQU

hTY

Current liabilities: \

Current installments of long-term debt

Accounts payable .............. ‘
Accrued expenses
Trade sales payable

Total current liabilities ......
Long-term debt, less current installments
Deferred tax liabilities, net

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (note 15)

................................

Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 10,000,C“00 shares authorized, none issued . ...

Class A common stock, $.001 par value,

7,459,364 and 7,834,864 issued in 2004 and 2005, respectively

50 000,000 shares authorized,

Class B common stock, $.001 par value, 75 ,000,000 shares authorized,

16,817,743 and 16,712,743 issued in 2004 and 2005, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive i income

Unearned compensation

Treasury stock, 43,065 and 174,976 shares in 2004 and 2005, respectively

Total stockholders’ equity . . . .

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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December 31, December 31,
2004 2005

$ 14,850,440 $ 16,278,951
21,522,167 21,631,643
1,696,096 945,106
497,729 483,602
2,523,580 2,370,202
— 971,864
472,165 453,897
41,562,177 43,135,265
4,412,732 4,254,350
18,729,690 19,007,810
203,174,334 199,661,298
10,128,224 10,128,224
3,598,753 1,044,128

1,006,270 —
3,688,137 3,585,921

$286,300,317 $280,816,996

$ 5625000 $

2,551,926 1,770,129
5,133,737 8,100,733
1,829,479 862,882
15,140,142 10,733,744
153,361,906 144,375,000
36,723,082 37,709,914
205,225,130 192,818,658
7,460 7,835
16,817 16,712
106,679,201 110,595,394
(27,676,506)  (18,477,748)
2,671,424 1,081,431
— (2,736,988)
(623,209)  (2,488,298)
81,075,187 87,998,338

$286,300,317 $280,816,996




BEASLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2003 2004 2005
NELTEVENUE ..\ttt ettt e e e et et $114,482,240 $122,204,954 $124,293,932
Costs and expenses:
Cost of services (exclusive of depreciation and amortization

shown separately below) .................. ... ... ... 39,461,502 40,382,608 41,095,051
Selling, general and administrative (exclusive of stock-based

compensation of $36,027 for the year ended December 31, l

2005 ) e e 39,559,535 42,735,701 44,969,059
Corporate general and administrative (exclusive of stock-based

compensation of $1,060,585 for the year ended December 31,

2005) L 5,494,605 6,384,047 6,993,380
Stock-based compensation ............ ... — — 1,096,612
Depreciation and amortization .......... ... ... ... .. i 2,899,341 2,838,273 2,897,059
Impairment 10SS . ........ oot —_ — 2,002,968
Asset purchase agreement termination costs ................. — — 141,449

Total costs and €Xpenses ........ovverrniinennnen.. 87,414,983 92,340,629 99,195,578

Operating income from continuing operations ....... 27,067,257 29,864,325 25,098,354
Other income (expense):

Interest eXpense ...........c.v vt (11,869,882) (7,447,839) (7,370,206)
Loss on extinguishment of long-termdebt . . ................. — (2,418,781) —
Other non-operating eXpenses . .. .........c.oeeenrernneen.. (594,548) (220,731) (87,450)
Gainon saleof investments ........... ... .ooiniiinnn.., 4,491,938 — —
Gain on increase in fair value of derivative financial

INSITUMENTS ...ttt e et eeiens R 1,629,815 179,185 —
IntereSt INCOMIE . v vttt et et e et et 593,409 384,022 498,908
Other non-operating income . ... ...t nn.. 33,699 53,442 214,967

Income from continuing operations before income taxes and
discontinued Operations ..................oeei.... 21,351,688 20,393,623 18,354,573
TNCOmME tax EXPense ... .. ..ouiu it 8,847,336 8,362,781 7,649,244
Income from continuing operations before discontinued
OPEIAtiONS . ...ttt t ettt 12,504,352 12,030,842 10,705,329
Discontinued operations (net of income tax expense of $137,463) .. .. 266,840 — —
Netincome . ...t i $ 12,771,192 $ 12,030,842 $ 10,705,329

Basic net income per share:
Income from continuing operations before discontinued

OPETALIONS .+« v\ttt ettt et $ 052 % 050 $ 0.44
Discontinued Operations . . ......oveuveurinernernneueren.. 0.01 — —
NELINCOME « o\ttt ettt e e e $ 053 § 050 § 0.44

Diluted net income per share:
Income from continuing operations before discontinued

OPETAIONS « 4 v\t v e e it e et et et $ 051 $ 049 $ 0.44
Discontinued operations . ............ ... .. ... .., 0.01 — —
NetinCOmME . . ..ottt e $ 052 $ 049 § 0.44

Basic common shares outstanding ............... .. ... . L 24,273,783 24,263,103 24,201,679
Diluted common shares outstanding . .......................... 24,334,480 24,528,971 24,325,976

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements




BEASLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2003 2004 2005
NEtINCOME .\t vt ettt $12,771,192 $12,030,842 $10,705,329
Other comprehensive income (loss): ‘i
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-‘for-sale investment (net of
income tax expense of $1,371,0Q? for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and income t“ax benefit of $78,785 and
$987,126 for the years ended Dec‘;ember 31, 2004 and 2005,
respectively) ............... e 2,178,991 (125,215) (1,568,874)
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivativq“ financial instruments (net
of income tax expense of $163,6%3, $224,999 for the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2q04, respectively and
income tax benefit of $13,287 fo% the year ended December
31,2005) .o 260,050 357,598 (21,119)
Other comprehensive income (loss) .................. 2,439,041 232,383 (1,589,993)
I
Comprehensive income . . .. R e e $15,210,233 $12,263,225 $ 9,115,336

See accompanying notes to consolidated ffinancial statements
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BEASLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Class A ClassB  Additional Other Net
Common Common  Paid-In  Accumulated Comprehensive Unearned Treasury Stockholders’
Stock Stock Capital Deficit Income Compensation  Stock Equity

Balances as of

December 31, ;

2002 ..., $7,441 516,832 $106,633,932 $(52,478,540) $ — $ — 3 —  $54,179,665
Netincome ......... — — — 12,771,192 — — — 12,771,192
Other comprehensive

income .......... — — — — 2,439,041 — — 2,439,041
Exercise of stock

options .......... 2 —_ 18,374 —_ —_ —_ — 18,376
Tax benefit from .

exercise of stock

options .......... —_ —_ 2,045 — -— —_ —_ 2,045

Balances as of

December 31,

2003 ...l 7,443 16,832 106,654,351 (39,707,348) 2,439,041 — — 69,410,319
Netincome ......... — — — 12,030,842 — — — 12,030,842
Other comprehensive

income .......... — — — _— 232,383 . — — 232,383
Conversion of Class B

comimon stock to

Class A common

stock ............ 15 (15) — — — — — —
Purchase of treasury

stock ............ — — — —_ — — (623,209) (623,209)
Exercise of stock

options .......... 2 — 16,498 — — — — 16,500
Tax benefit from

exercise of stock

options .......... — — 8,352 — — — - 8,352

Balances as of
- December 31,

2004 ............ 7,460 16,817 106,679,201 (27,676,506) 2,671,424 — (623,209) 81,075,187
Netincome ......... —_ - —_ 10,705,329 —_ _ —_ 10,705,329
Other comprehensive

loss ............. — — _ — (1,589,993) — —_ (1,589,993)
Cash dividends,

.$0.0625 per

common share .. ... — — — (1,506,571) — — — (1,506,571)
Conversion of Class B

common stock to

Class A common

stock ............ 105 (105) — — — — — —

Purchase of treasury

stock ............ — —_— — — — — (1,865,089)  (1,865,089)
Exercise of stock

options .......... 3 — 24,747 — —_ — — 24,750
Tax benefit from

exercise of stock )

options .......... -— — 11,330 — — — — 11,330
Issuance of restricted

stock ............ 267 — 3,833,333 — — (3,833,600) — —
Amortization of )

unearned

compensation . .... _— — — —_ — 1,096,612 — 1,096,612
Other equity

transaction . ....... — — 46,783 —_ — —_ 46,783

Balances as of
December 31,
2005 ............ $7,835 $16,712 $110,595,394 $(18,477,748) $ 1,081,431 $(2,736,988) $(2,488,298) $87,998,338

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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BEASLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

H

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Income from discontinued operations . ...

Income from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile income from conti
by continuing operations:
Income from trade sales
Stock-based compensation
Depreciation and amortization
Impairmentloss ................. R AR
Asset purchase agreement termination costs
Amortization of loan fees |
Loss on extinguishment of long-term d{abt
Gain on sale of investments ........ 15 ...............................
Gain on increase in fair value of derivative financial instruments
" Gainonsaleofbuilding ........... 0
Deferred income taxes :
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables ”
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) decrease in other assets b
Increase in payables and accrued e“xpenses

Net cash provided by continuing operations
Net cash vsed in discontinued operations

Net cash provided by operati?g activities

Cash flows from investing activities: |
Capital expenditures :
Proceeds from disposition of radio stations
Proceeds from sale of building .......... L
Payments for investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Repayment of note receivable .......... H ...............................
Repayment of notes receivable from related parties

. L . s
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
il

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of indebtedness

Principal payments on indebtedness
Payments of loan fees i
Proceeds from exercise of stock options .. !
Other equity transaction
Payments for treasury stock

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ...... i
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

Supplement disclosure of non-cash operating and

Trade salesrevenue . ..................]!
Trade sales expense ................... “
Property and equipment acquired through pla

Issuance of restricted stock . ............. |

See accompanying notes to consolidated

financial statements
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Year Ended  Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2003 2004 2005
$12,771,192  $ 12,030,842 § 10,705,329
(266,840) — —_
12,504,352 12,030,842 10,705,329
(461,913) (561,567) (305,354)
— — 1,096,612
2,899,341 2,838,273 2,897,059
— — 2,002,968
— — 141,449
674,651 438,248 451,172
— 2,418,781 —
(4,491,938) — —
(1,629,815) (179,185) —
— — (204,366)
8,480,794 6,707,656 3,515,581
(182,929) 176,523 (95,349)
25,639 (570,727) (108,071)
2,268,139 (299,230) (296,498)
451,255 1,736,506 666,496
20,537,576 24,736,120 20,467,028
(199,626) — —_
20,337,950 24,736,120 20,467.028
(1,374,904) (3,852,961) . (3,177,562)
1,500,000 — —
— — 620,000
— (2,751 (1,375)
4,791,938 — —
3,350,000 —_ —
138,427 147,318 158,382
8,405,461 (3,708,394) (2,400,555)
— 168,986,906 -
(26,372,264)  (179,986,906) (14,611,906)
(107,381) (2,300,323) (232,500)
18,376 16,500 24,750
— — 46,783
— (623,209) (1,865,089)
(26,461,269) (13,907,032)  (16,637,962)
2,282,142 7,120,694 1,428,511
5,447,604 7,729,746 14,850,440
$ 7,729,746 $ 14,850,440 $ 16,278,951
$11419,615 $ 7,035949 $ 6,986,377
$ 448050 $ 922,580 $ 5,033,545
$ 6,356,638 $§ 6,264,681 $ 4,811,436
$ 5894725 $ 5,703,114 $ 4,506,082
$ 193,055 $ 494230 $ 89,747
$ — 5 — $ 3,833,600




BEASLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. (the “Company”) owns 41 radio stations with its primary source of revenue
generated from the sale of advertising airtime to local and national advertisers and national network advertisers.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include the consolidated accounts of the
Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been

eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from these estimates. To the extent management’s estimates prove to be incorrect, financial results for

future periods may be adversely affected.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits and short-term investments with an original maturity of
three months or less.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has only limited involvement with derivative financial instruments and does not use them for
trading purposes. The Company uses interest rate swap agreements to reduce the potential impact of changes in
interest rates on its credit facility. These swap agreements are all designated and accounted for as cash flow
hedges of the Company’s credit facility in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS™) 133. The swap agreements are reported at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet and
any changes in fair value are reported, net of income taxes, as a component of accumulated other comprehensive

income in stockholders’ equity.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on management’s judgment of the collectibility of the
accounts receivable based on historical information, relative improvements or deteriorations in the age of the
accounts receivable and changes in current economic conditions.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets for financial reporting purposes. For income
tax purposes, property and equipment is depreciated using accelerated methods. Repairs and maintenance are

charged to expense as incurred.

Impairment

The Company assesses the recoverability of property and equipment and certain intangibles, whenever an
event has occurred that may result in an impairment loss, by comparing estimates of related future undiscounted
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BEAISLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOL}DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

cash flows to the carrying amounts of ttfp assets. If the future undiscounted cash flow estimate is less than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount is\\reduced to the estimated fair value. The Company also evaluates the
|

useful lives of property and equipment and certain intangibles to determine whether events or circumstances

warrant revised depreciation or amortiza”tion periods.

i
FCC Broadcasting Licenses and Gooc{?will
)

FCC broadcasting licenses and goo%lwill are stated at cost less the accumulated amortization recorded
through December 31, 2001, at which time the Company adopted SFAS 142. FCC broadcasting licenses and
goodwill are not amortized but are tested for impairment at least annually as of December 31 in accordance with
the provisions of SFAS 142.

L
|
\

Investments \

|

The Company’s investment in MIVA (formerly known as FindWhat.com) is classified as available-for-sale
and recorded at fair value based on its quuoted market price. The unrealized gain or loss on MIVA is reported, net
of income taxes, as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. The
Company’s investments in iBiquity are recorded at historical cost due to restrictions that limit the Company’s
ability to sell or otherwise dispose of the l‘\securities.

I
[

. .
Loan Fees ‘w
i
The costs related to the issuance of debt are capitalized and accounted for as interest expense using the

effective interest method over the life of %he related debt.

‘{
Revenue Recognition . : \\“

Revenue from the sale of advertising airtime is recognized when commercials are broadcast and collection
is reasonably assured. Revenues are repoﬂ"ted net of advertising agency commissions in the consolidated financial
statements. An allowance is recorded for {lncollectible accounts. Trade sales are recorded at the estimated fair
value of the goods or services received. Rﬂevenue from trade sales is recognized when commercials are broadcast.
Goods or services are recorded when received. If commercials are broadcast before the goods or services are
received then a trade sales receivable is recorded. If goods or services are received before the broadcast of

. .
commercials then a trade sales payable is recorded.

Program Rights

The total contract costs for sports programming rights are expensed on a straight-line basis in the periods in
which the games are played and broadcast and are reported in cost of services in the consolidated statements of

operations. Other payments are expensed when additional contract elements, such as post-season games, are
played and broadcast. ‘ '

:\
|
|
|
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BEASLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Stock-Based Compensation

As of December 31, 2005, the Company has one stock-based compensation plan, which is described more
fully in note 11. The Company accounts for this plan under the recognition and measurement principles of APB
Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. The following table illustrates the effect on net income
and net income per share as if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, as amended by SFAS 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation—Transition and Disclosure, to stock-based compensation.

2003 2004 2005

Netincome ........... N $12,771,192 $12,030,842 $10,705,329
Add stock-based compensation expense included in reported net ‘

income (net of income tax benefit of $423,511 for the year ended -

December 31,2005) . ... i e " : — —_ 673,101
Deduct total stock-based compensation expense determined under

fair value based methods for all awards (net of income tax benefit

of $850,992, $354,010 and $671,854 for the years ended

December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively) ............. (1,352,510) (562,639) (1,067,802)
Adjusted netincome ..., e $11,418,682 $11,468,203 $10,310,628
Net income per share: ,

Basic—asreported ......... ... . i $ 053 $ 050 $ 0.44
Basic—asadjusted .......... ... . i $ 047 § 047 $ 0.43
Diluted—as reported ..............o it $ 052 % 049 $ 0.44
Diluted—as adjusted . ..........c...oiiiieeiiininen $ 047 % 047 § 0.42

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attribiitable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the
potential dilution that could occur if stock options, restricted stock or other contracts to issue common stock were
exercised or converted into common stock and were not anti-dilutive.

Segment Information

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company reorganized its internal reporting process and the information
provided to the Company’s chief operating decision maker to better facilitate his evaluation of the performance
of the Company’s radio stations. The Company’s chief operating decision maker no longer evaluates
performance or allocates resources based on the operating segments reported during periods that ended prior to
January 1, 2004. As a result of this reorganization, the Company now operates only one reportable segment,
which includes all of its radio stations.
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BEA\SLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has a defined contribution plan that conforms with Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Under this plan, employees may %ontribute a minimum of 1% of their compensation (no maximum) to the
ver, limited contributions to $12,000 or $14,000 if aged 50 years or older

Plan. The Internal Revenue Code, howe
in 2003, $13,000 or $16,000 if aged 50 years or older in 2004, and $14,000 or $18,000 if aged 50 years or older
in 2005. There was no employer matching contributions for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123(R), Share-Based Payment. SFAS 123(R)
establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for

goods or services. It also addresses tranﬁactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or

services that are based on the fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance

of those equity instruments. SFAS 123(1”2) replaces SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and
supersedes APB Opinion 25, Accountmg for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS 123(R) eliminates the alternative

to use Opinion 25’s intrinsic value method of accounting that was provided in SFAS 123 as originally issued.
Under Opinion 25, issuing stock options to employees generally resulted in recognition of no compensation cost.
SFAS 123(R) requires entities to recognulze the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of
equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of those awards. As a result of the adoption of SFAS(R), the
Company expects to record an additional $0.3 million of stock-based compensation expense during 2006 related

to previous grants of stock options.

In May 2005, the Financial Accounti

Error Corrections. SFAS 154 replaces AP

Changes in Interim Financial Statements,
change in accounting principle. SFAS app.
by an accounting pronouncement that does

ng Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS 154, Accounting Changes and
B Opinion 20, Accounting Changes and SFAS 3, Reporting Accounting
and changes the requirements for the accounting for, and reporting of, a

ies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle and to changes required
not include specific transition provisions. SFAS 154 requires retrospective

application to prior periods’ financial statements of changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to

determine either the period-specific effects”

or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS 154 is effective for

accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company

I

does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS 154 will have a material impact on its earnings or financial position.

Reclassifications

At December 31, 2005, the Compan
unamortized organizational costs previot
consolidated balance sheet as of Decemb”
million of loan fee amortization previous
expense in the consolidated statements o

(2) Acquisitions and Dispositions

Radio station acquisitions are accou
accordingly, the purchase price is allocat
the date of the acquisition. Operations of]
the acquisition date of each radio station.

Termination of Asset Purchase Agreen

In June 2004, the Company entered i
in the Elizabethtown radio market in Nort]

y reclassified $2.7 million of unamortized loan fees. and $0.2 million of
sly reported as other intangibles, net, into other assets in the
er 31, 2004. The Company also reclassified $0.7 million and $0.4

ly reported in depreciation and amortization expense into interest

f operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004.

nted for by the purchase method for financial statement purposes, and
ed to the assets acquired based on their estimated fair market values at
acquired radio stations are included in the results of the Company from

1ent

nto an asset purchase agreement to acquire WGQR-FM and WBLA-AM
h Carolina for approximately $850,000. On June 24, 2005, the FCC
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BEASLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

released a decision denying the request for waiver of the multiple ownership rules that the Company had filed in
connection with its application to acquire WGQR-FM and WBLA-AM. The decision also dismissed the related
pending assignment application. Consequently, the asset purchase agreement was effectively terminated on June 24,
2005 and the Company wrote off $141,449 of previously capitalized costs related to the asset purchase agreement.

2003 Disposition

*  On February 5, 2003, the Company completed the sale of WBYU-AM to ABC, Inc for $1.5 million. The
proceeds from the sale were used to reduce the outstanding balance of the revolving credit loan under
the Company’s credit facility. The Company recorded a pre-tax gain of $436,365 on the disposition. The
gain is reported in discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2003. Upon completion of this sale the Company no longer has operations in New
Orleans therefore the results of operations for WBYU-AM have been reported as discontinued
operations in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003.

A summary of discontinued operations is as follows:

N TEVEIUE .« oottt ettt et e e e e e e e e e $ 3,027
Gainon disposal . ... ... $436,365
Income before INCOME tAXES . . . ..ot v vt ittt ettt e et e e et ens $404,303
INCOME X EXPEISE . ..ttt vt vttt ettt ettt e e e et e e 137,463
Net income from discontinued OPerations . ..............uueuerurnnernnnennnnenn. $266,840

(3) Derivative Financial Instruments

As of December 31, 2004 and 2005, the Company was a party to five interest rate swap agreements with a
$75.0 million aggregate notional amount. These agreements expire from May to August 2006. As of December
31, 2004 and 2005, the fair value of these agreements reported in accumulated other comprehensive income was
a current asset of $1.0 million.

The Company paid additional interest of $3.0 million and $0.5 million under its swap agreements for the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. The Company received additional interest of $0.6 million under
its swap agreements for the year ended December 31, 2005. The amount received or paid is based on the differential
between the specified rates of the swap agreements and the variable interest rate of the credit facility.

(4) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is comprised of the following:

December 31, ii?:;allitsgs

2004 2005 (years)
Land, buildings and improvements .................... $ 9,394379 $ 9,532,552 15-30
Broadcastequipment ............ ... .. i 16,110,631 17,773,521 5-15
Transportation equipment ..................c.o.o..... 1,271,403 1,460,862 5
Office equipment . . ... ... P 3,552,688 4,139,535 5-10
Construction in Progress ... ....vovrvuvenenenneennas 1,784,725 2,000,703 —

32,113,826 34,907,173

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ......... (13,384,136) (15,899,363)

$ 18,729,690 $ 19,007,810
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(5) FCC Broadcasting Licenses

The changes in the carrying amoun;

as follows:

Balance as of December 31, 2004
Impairmentloss ..............
Reversal of deferred tax liability .

Balance as of December 31, 2005 .

The Company tested its FCC broad
with the provisions of SFAS 142. To as

December 31, 2005, the Company obtai;

testing, the Company recorded an impai

t of FCC broadcasting licenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 are

$203,174,334
(2,002,968)
(1,510,068)

$199,661,298

casting licenses for impairment as of December 31, 2005 in accordance
ist in estimating the fair value of its FCC broadcasting licenses as of

ned appraisals from an independent appraisal company. As a result of the
rment loss of $2.0 million related to the FCC broadcasting licenses in its

Augusta, GA market cluster.

|

1‘

In accordance with the provisions of EITF 93-7, Uncertainties Related to Income Taxes in a Purchase
Business Combination, the Company re"\:/ersed a previously recognized income tax contingency of $1.5 million
related to the acquisition of Centennial Broadcasting in 2001.

Investments

\
[
©6) |

|
As of December 31, 2004 and 2005, the Company held 200,000 shares of common stock of MIVA

(formerly known as FindWhat.com). Th
December 31, 2004 and 2005, respective
income was $3.3 million and $0.8 millic

As of December 31, 2004 and 200%

Digital. The carrying amount of the series

2004 and 2005. As of December 31, 20%)4 and 2005

e fair value of the common stock was $3.5 million and $1.0 million as of
ely. The unrealized gain reported in accumulated other comprehensive
n as of December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

, the Company held 5,394 shares of series A preferred stock of iBiquity
A preferred stock was approximately $50,000 as of December 31,
, the Company held 896 and 1,344 shares of series C

preferred stock of iBiquity Digital, respectively. The carrying amount of the series C preferred stock was

approximately $3,000 and $4,000 as of

December 31, 2004 and 2005, respectively.

In 2003, the Company sold 300,000 shares of MIVA and recorded a gain on investment of $4.5 million.

[
!
(7) Accrued Expenses }

Accrued expenses is comprised of

Accrued payroll
Dividends payable
Deferred revenue .............
Other accrued expenses

the following:

December 31,
2004 2005
............................... $2,382,123  $2,413,312
............................... — 1,506,571
............................... 617,630 1,028,071
............................... 2,133,984 3,152,779
' $5,133,737  $8,100,733
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(8) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt is comprised of the following:

December 31,
2004 2005
Credit facility:
Revolving creditloan ................cooiiiiiiiinn... $ 8986906 § —
Termloan ...t 150,000,000 144,375,000
158,986,906 144,375,000
Lesscurrentinstallments . ........... ..o n. e (5,625,000) —

$153,361,906  $144,375,000

As of December 31, 2004 and 2005, the credit facility consisted of a revolving credit loan with a maximum
commitment of $75.0 million and a term loan of $150.0 million. The revolving credit loan and term loan carried
interest, based on LIBOR, at 4.2858% and 5.4375% as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had $75.0 million in remaining commitments available under the
revolving portion of its credit facility; however, as of December 31, 2005, the Company’s maximum total
leverage covenant would have limited additional borrowings to $48.8 million.

The Company must pay a quarterly unused commitment fee equal to 0.375% on the unused portion of the
revolving credit loan. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, the Company paid unused
commitment fees of $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively.

The credit facility was secured by substantially all of the Company’s assets and guaranteed jointly and
severally by all of the Company’s subsidiaries. The guarantees were issued to the Company’s lenders for repayment
of the outstanding balance of the amended credit facility. If the Company defaulted under the terms of the amended
credit agreement, the subsidiaries may have been required to perform under their guarantees. The maximum amount
of payments the subsidiaries would have had to make in the event of default was $144.4 million.

The Company is required to satisfy financial covenants, which require it to maintain specified financial
ratios and to comply with financial tests, such as ratios for maximum consolidated total debt, minimum interest
coverage and minimum fixed charges. As of December 31, 2005, these financial covenants included:

*  Maximum Consolidated Total Debt Ratio. As of December 31, 2005, the Company’s consolidated
total debt must not have exceeded 6.0 times its consolidated operating cash flow for the four quarters
ending on such day (as such terms are defined in the credit agreement). On the last day of each fiscal
quarter for the period from January 1, 2006 through June 30, 2006, the maximum ratio was 5.75 times.
On the last day of each fiscal quarter for the period from July 1, 2006 through December 31, 2006, the
maximum ratio was 5.5 times. On the last day of each fiscal quarter for the period from January 1, 2007
through June 30, 2007, the maximum ratio was 5.25 times. On the last day of each fiscal quarter for the
period from July 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007, the maximum ratio was 5.0 times. On the last day
of each fiscal quarter for all periods after January 1, 2008, the maximum ratio was 4.5 times.

*  Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio. The Company’s consolidated operating cash flow for the four
quarters ending on the last day of each quarter must not have been less than 2.0 times the amount of its
consolidated cash interest expense for such four quarter period.

*  Minimum Fixed Charge Ratio. The Company’s consolidated operating cash flow for any four
consecutive quarters must not be less than 1.1 times the amount of its consolidated fixed charges for
such four quarter period. Fixed charges include cash interest expense, cash tax expense, capital
expenditures, agency and commitment fees, and scheduled principal repayments.

48




BEAS;;LEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.
|
NOTES TO'CONSOLLbATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Failure to comply with these ﬁnanciial covenants, scheduled interest payments, scheduled principal
repayments, or any other terms of its credit facility could result in the acceleration of the maturity of its
outstanding debt. The Company believes that it will have sufficient liquidity and capital resources to permit it to
he next twelve months.

meet its financial obligations for at least t

As of December 31, 2005, managem
financial covenants.

ent of the Company believed it was in compliance with applicable

On January 30, 2006, the Company amended its credit agreement (see note 17). As a result, the Company
classified the current and long-term installments of long-term debt in the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2005 in accordance with the terms of the amended credit agreement.

‘\1

(9) Fair Value of Financial Instrumen;‘

ts

i
The Company’s significant ﬁnancial,\‘ instruments and the methods used to estimate their fair values are as

follows: ;1

H
Derivative financial instrumentsi:——The fair value of the Company’s derivative financial instruments is
based on an estimate of the ammrlmts expected to be paid or received upon termination of the swap

I

agreements. ‘
I
Notes receivable from related pdhies—lt is not practicable to estimate the fair value of the Company’s

notes receivable due to their rélaj%ed party nature.
\

Investments—The fair value of the Company’s available-for-sale investment is estimated using quoted

market prices. \}‘

Long-term debt—The carrying amount of the Company’s long-term debt app

. . Lo ,
the variable interest rate, which 1‘;s based on current market rates.

| '

The carrying amounts of cash and ca‘l‘sh equivalents, accounts receivable, trade sales receivable, other
receivables, accounts payable, accrued expenses and trade sales payable approximates fair value due to the short-
term maturity of these instruments. \

roximates fair value due to

(10) Treasury Stock

In June 2004, the board of directors z#uthorized the Company to repurchase up to $25.0 million of its Class A
common stock over a period of one year from the date of authorization. On May 12, 2005, the board of directors

authorized a one-year extension of the rep
shares in 2004 and $1.9 miilion to repurch
purchases under the cost method whereby

‘urchase period. The Company paid $0.6 million to repurchase 43,065
ase 131,911 shares in 2005. The Company records treasury stock
the entire cost of the acquired stock is recorded as treasury stock.

(11) Stock-Based Compensation }
The 2000 Equity Plan of Beasley Brc‘;‘adcast‘ Group, Inc. (the “Plan”) provides for a variety of compensation
awards, including stock options, restricted stock, and other stock-related benefits. A total of 4,000,000 shares of
Class A common stock have been reserved for issuance under the Plan. As of December 31, 2005, the Company
has granted stock options with ten-year tetms that generally vest ratably and become fully exercisable after a
period of three to five years from the date ”of grant, however some contain performance-related provisions that

may delay vesting beyond five years but no longer than seven years after the date of grant.
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On July 1, 2005, the Company granted 267,500 shares of restricted stock under the Plan with a fair value of
$14.38 per share, the closing stock price on the grant date. The restricted shares generally vest ratably and
become fully vested after a period of three to five years from the date of grant. The fair value of the restricted
stock was $3.8 million as of the grant date and was recorded as unearned compensation, a component of
stockholders’ equity. Compensation expense will be recognized over the respective vesting period of each grant.
For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company recorded stock-based compensation of $1.1 million related
to the issuance of restricted stock.

Stock option and restricted stock activity during the periods indicated is as follows:

2003 2004 2005
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Number of  Exercise Number of  Exercise Number of  Exercise
Shares Price " Shares Price Shares Price
Stock options:
Beginning of year ............... 2,821,000 $15.02 2,916,834 $14.92 2,977,334 $14.94
Granted . ........... .. ... .. ... 97,500 $12.06 77,500 $15.64 21,250 $17.53
Exercised ...................... (1,666) $11.03 (2,000) $ 825 (3,000) $ 8.25
Forfeited ...................... — $ — (15,000) $15.50 (286,250) $12.71
Endofyear .................... 2,916,834 $14.92 2,977,334 $1494 2,709,334 $15.20
Options exercisable at end of year ...... 2,320,085 $15.34 2,353,439 $15.30 2,328,896 $15.31
Restricted stock:
Beginning of year ............... — — —
Granted ....................... — — 267,500
Endofyear .................... — — 267,500
Shares available for grant at end of
VAT .« vttt 1,081,500 1,019,000 1,016,500

The stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2005, have a range of exercise prices from $7.94 to
$17.53 and a weighted-average remaining contractual life of 4.5 years.

The per share weighted-average fair value of stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2003, 2004 and
2005 was $8.77, $8.80, and $8.88, respectively. The fair value of each option was estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the following assumptions:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
Expected life (inyears) ....................... 7 7 7
Expected volatility ............... ... ...... 68% 62% 57%
Risk-free interestrate ........................ 3.81%t04.40% 4.13% t0 4.53% 4.24%

Dividend yield — — —
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w\
(12) Income Taxes |

Total income tax expense is as folloifws:

Year ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005
Continuing operations ...... ................. $ 8,847,336 $8,362,781 $ 7,649,244
Discontinued operations .. .. ................. 137,463 — —
Additional paid-in capital ... .................. (2,045) (8,352) (11,330)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net . .. 1,534,632 146,214  (1,000,413)

$10,517,386 $8,500,643 $ 6,637,501

Income tax expense from continuing operations is as follows:

_Year ended December 31,

2003 2004 2005
Federal: .
CUITENt . o v o oo e $ —  $1,163,773 $3,182,046
Deferred .. ..o 7,069,968 5,455,079 2,814,068
7,069,968 6,618,852 5,996,114
State:
CUITEDt . .\ o oo 444,345 499,610 952,153
Deferred .. ........... L 1,333,023 1,244,319 700,977

‘ 1,777,368 1,743,929 1,653,130
' $8,847,336  $8,362,781  $7,649,244

Income tax expense from continuing operations differ from the amounts that would result from applying the
federal statutory rate of 34% to the Comﬂ‘any’s income from continuing operations before taxes as follows:
|

i : Year ended December 31,

“ 2003 2004 2005
Expected tax expense ........... 1 .................. $7,259,574  $6,933,832  $6,240,555
State income taxes, net of federal benefit .............. 1,163,736 1,046,193 1,174,381
Valuation allowance ............ ” .................. 60,721 188,565 (126,235)
Other ...........iiiiiiiin. (R 363,305 194,191 360,543

; $8,847,336  $8,362,781  $7,649,244
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Temporary differences that give rise to the components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2004 2005
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ......................... $ 210945 $ 189,149
Unrealized lossoninvestment ........................... L= 3,862
AcCrued €XPenses . ...t 222,065 640,085
Stock-based compensation .......... . ... i, — 423,511
Net operating losses .......... ..., 743,318 538,549
Subtotal ... e » 1,176,328 1,795,156
Valuation allowance .......... ... 0 iiiiininnnn. (664,784) (538,549)
Total .o e e 511,544 1,256,607
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain oninvestment ..................ovvennn.. (983,265) —
Unrealized gain on derivative financial instruments .......... (388,621) (375,334)
Property andequipment ............ ... .o i, (1,461,429) (1,192,559)
Intangibles .......... ... . ... e (33,929,146)  (36,944,731)
Total .o (36,762,461)  (38,512,624)
Net deferred tax liabilities ... .. P $(36,250,917) $(37,256,017)

The Company expects future operations to generate sufficient taxable income to utilize its net deferred tax
assets. As of December 31, 2005, the Company has state net operating losses of $11.1 million, which expire in
various years through 2025. The valuation allowance relates to net operating losses which management has
determined, more likely than not, that such losses will not be utilized before they expire.

(13) Earnings Per Share

Income from continuing operations before discontinued operations per share calculation information is as
follows: -

2003 2004 2005
Income from continuing operations before discontinued
OPETALIONS . . o\ttt e ettt e e e ettt e $12,504,352 $12,030,842 $10,705,329
Weighted-average shares outstanding:
Basic ....... PPN 24,273,783 24,263,103 24,201,679
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock Options .. ....ovtii i e 60,697 265,868 52,134
Restricted stock .. .......... it — —_ 72,163
Diluted . . ... e 24,334 480 24,528,971 24,325,976
Income from continuing operations before discontinued operations
perbasicshare .................... P $ 052 $ 050 $ 0.44
Income from continuing operations before discontinued operations
perdiluted share ............ ... . ... . ... i, $ 051 S 049 $ 0.44
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Notes receivable totaling $4.3 million are due from Beasley Family Towers, Inc. (“BFT”), which is owned

by George G. Beasley, Bruce G. Beasle}J
George G. Beasley, in monthly payment:
For the years ended December 31, 2003,
approximately $314,000, $305,000 and $

The Company leases certain radio t
For the years ended December 31, 2003

Caroline Beasley, Brian E. Beasley and other family members-of
including interest at 6.77%. The notes mature on December 28, 2020.
2004 and 2005 interest income on the notes receivable from BFT was
294,000, respectively.

ywers from BFT. The lease agreements expire on December 28, 2020.
,‘2004 and 2003, rental expense was approximately $527,000, $527,000

and $529,000, respectively.

The Company leases a radio tower i

n Augusta, GA from Wintersrun Communications, Inc., which is owned

by George G. Beasley and Brian E. Beasley The lease agreement expires on April 30, 2014. For the years ended

December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, rent
respectively.

al expense was approximately $24,000, $24,000 and $25,000,
h

I ‘
The Company leases office and studio space in Ft. Myers, FL from George G. Beasley. The lease
agreements expire on August 31, 2009. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, rental expense

was approximately $115,000, $118,000 2

The Company leases office and stuc‘
June 5, 2010. For the years ended Decem

$82,000, $86,000 and $90,000, respectiv‘

The Company leases land in Augus
November 1, 2023. For the year ended D
$5,000, $32,000 and $33,000, respective

The Company leases office space in

wholly-owned by George G. Beasley. Fc]
was approximately $100,000, $106,000 2

From time to time, the Company lec1
which is wholly-owned by George G. Be

expense was approximately $70,000, $9

As of December 31, 2005, future mi

are summarized as follows:

nd $124,000, respectively. |

lio space in Boca Raton, FL from BFT. The lease agreement expires on
ber 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, rental expense was approximately

ely.

F—

a, GA from George G. Beasley. The lease agreement expires on
ecember 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, rental expense was approximately

Y.

| Naples, FL from Beasley Broadcasting Management Corp., which is
r the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, rental expense
nd $111,000, respectively.

1ses aircraft for business trips from Beasley Aircraft Leasing, LLC,
asley. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, rental
,000 and $131,000, respectively.

nimum payments to related parties for the next five years and thereafter

$ 750,195
762,203
774,796
736,278
575,678

5,190,848

$8,789,998
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(15) Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases property and equipment from third parties under five- to thirty-year operating leases.
For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, lease expense was $1.9 million, $2.0 million and $2.0
million, respectively.

The Company also has various commitments for rating services, sports programming rights, consultants,
and on-air personalities not employed by us. As of December 31, 2005, future minimum payments to third parties
for the next five years and thereafter are summarized as follows:

2000 . . e e e $10,946,962
2007 L e e e 10,828,180
2008 .. e e e e e 6,784,890
2000 L e e e e 2,548,659
2000 . e e 1,307,824
Thereafter ... .. .o e e 6,654,108

Total ... .. $39,070,623

WQAM-AM’s license renewal is currently subject to objections and indecency-related proceedings at the
FCC, described below, and that renewal has not yet been granted. The Company timely-filed a renewal
application in October 2003. Because the Company filed a timely renewal application, it continues to operate the
radio station under this license in the ordinary course. The Company does not anticipate non-renewal.

In February 2004, the FCC initiated an enforcement inquiry in response to allegations that WQAM-AM had
broadcast indecent material on one day in September 2003. In November 2004, the FCC issued to the Company a
notice of apparent liability for a monetary forfeiture of $55,000 for alleged indecency violations relating to
broadcasts on two additional days in September 2003 at WQAM-AM. In December 2004, the FCC initiated an
enforcement inquiry in response to allegations that WQAM-AM had broadcast indecent material on eight
different dates in 2004 on the Howard Stern Show; that inquiry also relates to WRXK-FM, which also carried the
Howard Stern Show at that time. In August 2005, the FCC initiated an enforcement inquiry in response to
allegations that WQAM-AM had broadcast indecent material on four different occasions; that inquiry also relates
to WRXK.

KCYE-FM'’s license has not yet been renewed. The Company timely-filed a renewal application in June
2005. Because the Company filed a timely renewal application, it continues to operate the radio station under this
license in the ordinary course. The Company does not anticipate non-renewal.

In the normal course of business, the Company is party to various legal matters. The ultimate disposition of

these matters will not, in management’s judgment, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position.
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(16) Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudlted)
|

The following unaudited information shows selected items for each quarter of the Company’s two most
recent fiscal years. ‘g

| First Second Third Fourth

Year ended December 31, 2005 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Netrevenue ................c...... “ .......... $28,636,183 $33,011,479 $32,051,349 $30,594,921
Operating income . .............. . ‘\ .......... 4,237,247 8,131,807 7,879,931 4,849,369
Netincome ......................bo L. 1,627,560 3,787,764 3,757,945 1,532,060
Basic netincome pershare ..........0.......... 0.07 0.16 0.16 0.06
Diluted net income per share . . ........ ‘ .......... 0.07 0.16 0.15 0.06
{\ First Second Third Fourth
Year ended December 31, 2004 : Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Netrevenue .............ouv. ... \‘ .......... $26,068,618 $30,959,144 $31,771,720 $33,405,472
Operating income ................. P 4,829,745 7,980,509 8,485,617 8,568,454
Netincome ...................... I 242,381 3,773,221 4,101,271 3,913,469
Basic net income per share ..........J.......... 0.01 0.16 0.17 0.16
Diluted net income per share . ......... L 0.01 0.15 0.17 0.16

\

The Company tested its FCC broadc‘asting licenses for impairment as of December 31, 2005 in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS 142. To assi“st in estimating the fair value of its FCC broadcasting licenses as of
December 31, 2005, the Company obtained appraisals from an independent appraisal company. As a result of the
testing, the Company recorded an 1mpa1rr“nent loss of $2.0 million related to the FCC broadcasting licenses in its
Augusta, GA market cluster during the fourth quarter of 2005,

(17) Subsequent Event l‘

On January 30, 2006, the Company amended its credit agreement. The amended credit facility consists of a
revolving credit loan with a maximum co%mtment of $119.4 million and a term loan of $100.0 million. The
revolving credit loan includes a $10.0 m1]‘11on sub-limit for letters of credit, which may be increased to $20.0
million upon the Company’s request and with the approval of the Bank of Montreal, Chicago Branch in its
capacity as a letter of credit issuer. At the Company’s election, the revolving credit loan and term loan may bear
interest at either the base rate or LIBOR plusa margin that is determined by the Company’s debt to operating
cash flow ratio. The base rate is equal to the higher of the prime rate or the overnight federal funds rate plus
0.5%. Interest on base rate loans is payable quarterly through maturity. Interest on LIBOR loans is payable on the
last day of the selected LIBOR period and, if the selected period is longer than three months, every three months

after the beginning of the LIBOR period. “

The revolving credit loan and term loan mature on June 30, 2013. The
scheduled reductions in the amount available under the revolving credit loan may require principal repayments if
the outstanding balance at that time exceéhs the maximum amount available under the revolving credit loan. In
connection with the amended credit agreement the Company recorded a $0.7 million loss on extinguishment of

long-term debt during the first quarter of ‘2006
\

The amended credit facility is secure‘d by substantially all of the Company’s assets and guaranteed jointly
and severally by all of the Company’s sub‘{sidiaries. The guarantees were issued to the Company’s lenders for

repayment of the outstanding balance of tl“ne credit facility. If the Company defaults under the terms of the credit
facility, the subsidiaries may be required to perform under their guarantees. The maximum amount of
undiscounted payments the subsidiaries would have to make in the event of default is $144.4 million. The

guarantees for the revolving credit loan an‘d term loan expire on June 30, 2013.
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As of January 30, 2006, the scheduled repayments of the credit facility for the next five years and thereafter
are as follows:

Revolving : Total credit
credit loan Term loan facility
2006 ... e e $ — $ — $ —
2007 . e e e — 3,750,000 3,750,000
2008 .. e — 5,000,000 5,000,000
2009 ........... et e e = 7,250,000 7,250,000
2000 .. e — 8,000,000 8,000,000
Thereafter ...... e e e 44,375,000 76,000,000 120,375,000
Total ........ ... . . i, $44,375,000  $100,000,000 $144,375,000

The Company is required to satisfy financial covenants, which require it to maintain specified financial
ratios and to comply with financial tests, such as ratios for maximum consolidated total debt, minimum interest
coverage and minimum fixed charges. As of January 30, 2006, these financial covenants included:

*  Maximum Consolidated Total Debt Rativ. On the last day of each fiscal quarter for the period from
January 30, 2006 to December 31, 2007, our consolidated total debt must not exceed 6.0 times our
consolidated operating cash flow for the four quarters then ending (as those terms are defined in the
amended credit agreement). On the last day of each fiscal quarter for the period from January 1, 2008
through December 31, 2008, the maximum ratio is 5.5 times; on the last day of each fiscal quarter for
the period from January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2009, the maximum ratio is 5.0 times; on the last
day of each fiscal quarter for all periods after January 1, 2010, the maximum ratio is 4.5 times.

*  Minimum Interest Coverage Ratio. Our consolidated operating cash flow for the four quarters ending
on the last day of each quarter must not have been less than 2.0 times the amount of our consolidated
cash interest expense for such four quarter period.

¢ Minimum Fixed Charge Ratio. Our consolidated operating cash flow for any four consecutive quarters
must not be less than 1.1 times the amount of our consolidated fixed charges for such four quarter
period. Fixed charges include cash interest expense, cash tax expense, capital expenditures, agency and
commitment fees and scheduled principal repayments.
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BEASLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.

'FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE
\

i
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
|

Years épded Dgcember 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005

\‘ ColumnB  Column C

Column E
| Balanceat Charged to Balance at
| Beginning Costsand  Column D End of

Column A Description _ ‘ of Period Expenses  Deductions Period
Year ended December 31, 2003: i‘
Allowance for doubtful accounts “
(deducted from accounts receivable) ................. 415,814 951,264 899,775 467,303
Valuation allowance for deferred tz\lx assets . .......... ... 415,498 60,721 — 476,219
Year ended December 31, 2004 L\
Allowance for doubtful accounts
(deducted from accounts receivable) ................. 467,303 1,147,109 1,068,205 546,207
Valuation allowance for deferred taﬂx assets ... ... 476,219 188,565 — 664,784
Year ended December 31, 2005: |
Allowance for doubtful accounts M ’
(deducted from accounts receivable) ................. 546,207 1,358,367 1,414,805 489,769
Valuation allowance for deferred ta“‘lx aSSEtS ... 664,784 151,198 277433 538,549
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and, management
necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and
procedures. ‘

As of December 31, 2005, the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under
the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures.
Based upon the foregoing, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.

There has been no significant change in our internal controls over financial reporting during the Company’s
fourth fiscal quarter of 2005 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Internal control over financial reporting refers to the process designed by, or under the supervision of, our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, and effected by our board of directors, management and
other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of managements
and directors of the Company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting
objectives because of its inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves
human diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human
failures. Internal control over financial reporting also can be circumvented by collusion or improper management
override. Because of such limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected
on a timely basis by internal control over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are known
features of the financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to
reduce, though not eliminate, this risk.
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Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting for the Company. Managementihas used the framework set forth in the report entitled “Internal
Control—Integrated Framework” published by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (“COSQ”) of the
Treadway Commission to evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Management has concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of the
end of the most recent fiscal year. KPMG LLP has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of

the Company’s internal control over fina cial reporting.

George G. Beasley
Caroline Beasley

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information relating to directors and executive officers required by this Item 10 is incorporated in this
report by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Election of Directors” and “Executive
Officers” in our definitive proxy statement for our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed
with the Commission no later than April 30, 2006. The information relating to certain filings on Forms 3, 4 and 5
is incorporated in this report by reference to the information set forth under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our 2006 proxy statement. The information relating to our Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics is incorporated in this report by reference to the information set forth under the
caption “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics” in our 2006 proxy statement.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated in this report by reference to the information set
forth under the caption “Executive Officers Compensation” in our 2006 proxy statement. The sections entitled
“Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation” and “Performance Graph” in the 2006 proxy
statement are not incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated in this report by reference to the information set
forth under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters” in our 2006 proxy statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated in this report by reference to the information set
forth under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” in our 2006 proxy statement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated in this report by reference to the information set
forth under the caption “Principal Accounting Fees and Services” in our 2006 proxy statement.
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| PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL SHTATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements. A list of flnan01a1 statements included herein is set forth in the Index to Financial
Statements appearing in “ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.”

(b) Exhibits. !\
Exhibit e
Number Description o
3.1 Amended certificate of inc,or;");oration of the Registrant. (1)
3.2 Third amended and restated bylaws of the Registrant. (2)
10.1 Executive employment agreerfnent by and between Beasley Mezzanine Holdings, LLC and George G.
Beasley dated as of May 13, 2005. (8)
10.2 Executive employment agree%nent by and between Beasley Mezzanine Holdings, LLC and Bruce G.
Beasley dated as of May 13, ‘2“005. 1¢))
10.3 Executive employment agreement by and between Beasley Mezzanine Holdings, LLC and B. Caroline
Beasley dated as of May 13, 2005. (10)
10.4 Executive employment agreelipent by and between Beasley Mezzanine Holdings, LLC and Brian E.
Beasley dated as of May 13, 2005. (11)
10.5 The 2000 Equity Plan of Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. (1)
10.6 Allen B. Shaw executive employment agreement with Beasley Mezzanine Holdings, LLC, dated
February 1, 2001, (3) H
10.7 Credit agreement between Beasley Mezzanine Holdings, LLC, Bank of Montreal, Chicago Branch,

as administrative agent, Bank of New York, as syndication agent, Harris Nesbitt and BNY Capital
Markets, Inc. as co-lead arrangers Bank of America N.A., ING Capital, LLC and Wells Fargo,
National Association, as co-documentation agents, and other financial institutions, dated February
27, 2004. (4) | :

10.8 First amendment to credit agréement dated February 27, 2004 between Beasley Mezzanine Holdings,
LLC, Bank of Montreal, Ch1cznigo Branch; as administrative agent, and other financial institutions,
dated June 18,2004. (5) |

10.9 First Amendment to the 2000 Equity Plan of Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. (6)

10.10 Second amendment to credit agreement dated February 27, 2004 between Beasley Mezzanine
Holdings, LL.C, Bank of Mon#eal, Chicago Branch, as administrative agent, and other financial
institutions, dated June 27, 2005. (12)

10.11 Third amendment to credit agreement dated February 27, 2004 between Beasley Mezzanine
Holdings, LLC, Bank of Monﬂ?real, Chicago Branch, as administrative agent, and other financial
institutions, dated January 30, ;2006.

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company. (7)

23.1 Consent of KPMGLLP. |

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 15d-14(a) (17 CFR 240.15d-14(a)).

312 Certification of Vice PresxdentJ Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer pursuant to Rule
15d-14(a) (17 CFR 240.15d- 14(a))

321 Certification of Chief Executl\ﬂe Officer pursuant to Rule 15d-14(b) (17 CFR 240.15d-14(b)) and 18
U.S.C. Section 1350.

322 Certification of Vice Pres1dent\ Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer pursuant to Rule

15d-14(b) (17 CFR 240.15d- 14(b)) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 1 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Form
S-1/A dated February 11, 2000. (File No 333-91683).

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 1 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
dated February 13, 2001. ‘
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Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
dated February 13, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
dated March 12, 2004. '

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
dated August 5, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Registration Statement on
Form S-8 dated May 27, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
dated August 14, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated May 13, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated May 13, 2005. '

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to Beasley Broadeast Group, Inc.’s Current Report on Form §-K

dated May 13, 2005.

(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K

dated May 13, 2005.

(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K

dated June 30, 2005.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of S?;ection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized.

Pursuant to the requirements of th
of the registrant and in the capacities a

Signature

/s/ GEORGE G. BEASLEY

|

George G. Beasley

/s/ BRUCE G. BEASLEY

Bruce G. Beasley

/s/ CAROLINE BEASLEY

Caroline Beasley

/s/ BRIAN E. BEASLEY

Brian E. Beasley

/s/  ALLEN B. SHaw

Allen B. Shaw

/s/ JoE B. Cox

Joe B. Cox

/s/ MARK S. FOWLER

Mark 8. Fowler

/s/ HERBERT W. McCoORD

Herbert W. McCord

BEASLEY BROADCAST GROUP, INC.

By: /s/  GEORGE G. BEASLEY
George G. Beasley
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

Title

Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer (principal
executive officer)

President, Co-Chief Operating Officer
and Director

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary, Treasurer and Director
{(principal financial and accounting

officer)

Vice President of Operations and
Director

Vice-Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

Director
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Board of Directors

George G. Beasley

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.

Allen B. Shaw
Vice-Chairman |
President and CEO ‘
Centennial Broadcasting, LLC I

H
Bruce G. Beasley

President and Co-Chief Operating Ofﬁcer

Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.

Caroline Beasley

Vice-President and Chief Financial Ofﬁcer

Secretary and Treasurer “

Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. j}
H

Brian E. Beasley

Vice President of Operations

Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.

Joe B. Cox, Attorney
Partner
Cox & Nici

Mark S. Fowler
Chairman
AssureSat, Inc.

Herbert W. McCord

President
Granum Communications Corp.
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Stockholder Information

Transfer Agent

American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane, Ground Floor
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Investor Relations

Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. welcomes inquiries
from stockholders or other interested parties. For
additional copies of this report or other
information, contact our Director of Corporate
Communications at: (239) 263-5000.

Stock Listing

Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc. Class A common
stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market
under the symbol BBGL

Annual Meeting

The 2006 Annual Meeting of the stockholders will
be held on Wednesday, May 24, 2006 at

11:00 am. local time, in the corporate offices

of Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.:

Beasley Broadcast Group, Inc.
3033 Riviera Drive, Suite 200
Naples, FL 34103
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